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The remaining 25% is held by Simest S.p.A. Since Tesmec has a buy-back obligation vis-à-vis Simest S.p.A., from an accounting 
point of view the investment of the Parent Company in Tesmec S.p.A. is consolidated on a 100% basis.

 

Simest S.p.A., from an accounting 
point of view the investment of the Parent Company in Tesmec S.p.A. is consolidated on a 100% basis. 
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1. Introduction1. Introduction1. Introduction1. Introduction    

The parent company Tesmec S.p.A. (hereinafter “Parent Company” or “Tesmec”) is a legal entity organised in 

accordance with the legal system of the Italian Republic. The ordinary shares of Tesmec are listed on the MTA STAR 

Segment of the Milan Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Company is in Milan in Piazza S. Ambrogio no. 16. 

The Group is mainly active in designing, production and sale integrated solutions for the construction and 

maintenance of infrastructures such as aerial and underground networks and pipelines. 

In particular, the Group operates through two product lines for the design, production and sale of: 

� machines and integrated systems for stringing power lines and fibre optic cables and the stringing of 

railway power networks; the products for the stringing segment are manufactured at the Italian production 

plants of Grassobbio (Bergamo), Endine Gaiano (Bergamo), Sirone (Lecco) and Monopoli (Bari) and at the 

US plant in Alvarado (Texas); 

� high-powered crawler trenchers for linear excavation and underground laying of fibre optic and energy 

cables and pipelines, or for earth moving works and, to a lesser extent, multi-purpose construction 

equipment (Gallmac). The products for the trencher segment are manufactured at the production plants 

located in Grassobbio (Bergamo) and Sirone (Lecco) in Italy and Alvarado (Texas) in the United States of 

America. 

 

The infrastructures market for the transmission of electrical power and data and material transport (oil and oil 
derivatives, gas, water) is our leading market, which covers an area that is strategic to the growth and modernisation 

of any country. 

 

In addition to the historical sectors, Tesmec is also increasing its presence in two new market segments: the Group 

has also extended its range of traditional machines for  to string the power lines with the design and manufacture of 

machines for the maintenance of railway network,  the streamlining and management of power grid networks and 

the provision of specialised excavation services.. 

 

In particular, with reference to stringing equipment, the main sector in which the integrated solutions made by the 

Group are used, is the construction of infrastructure for electrical power transmission (power lines), the 

construction and maintenance of electricity lines on existing power lines and the construction of infrastructure for 

data and voice transmission, particularly works involving the stringing and maintenance of fibre optic cables. 
 

Starting from 2009, the Group has added a new service to its traditional business of selling trencher machines. It 

entails providing trenchers to specialist excavation companies on long or short term lease contracts with the 

additional option of purchasing the trenchers at the end of the lease. These activities are organised through dedicated 

companies set up to better meet the requirements of a service business. 

 

 

2. Macroeconomic Framework2. Macroeconomic Framework2. Macroeconomic Framework2. Macroeconomic Framework    

In the EMU, national statistics showed a -0.2% fall in GDP in the first half of the year. Combined with the 

deterioration of quality indicators in the third quarter, GDP is expected to fall -0.5% by the end of the year. This 

contraction is mostly due to a fall in private sector consumption and poor investment figures. 

In contrast, almost all of the major world stock markets recorded positive performances in the third quarter. More 

specifically, the markets of developed countries led the uptrend, with Italy and Spain recording double-figure 

performances. 

This trend is the result of the decisive verbal commitment of the ECB, which showed a stronger determination to 

overcome the contradictions characterising the European Union, in an attempt to conciliate the need for financial 

solidarity and fiscal-economic rigour in a situation of economic crisis that has emphasised the differences between 

principles underlying the economies of Member States, and has shed light on the damage that a country’s inability to 
grow structurally can cause. 

 

With regard to Italy, a fall in excess of -2% of GDP is expected in 2012, while forecasts for 2013 indicate a further fall 

of -0.5%. A return to growth is envisaged in 2014-2018, albeit at a very modest rate. The poor liquidity of the 

banking system and weak internal demand could lead to a higher rate of unemployment, which could reach 12% in 

2013. 

 

In this context, the Tesmec Group needs to take advantage of its deep-rooted presence in those international 

markets that are still on upward growth trends. The Group’s products in both the Stringing equipment and Trencher 

segments could exploit the upward trend of investments in infrastructure by countries that are not afflicted by public 

debt problems and that need to boost their economic growth. 
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3. Significant events occurred during the period3. Significant events occurred during the period3. Significant events occurred during the period3. Significant events occurred during the period    

In the first nine months of 2012, the Group’s extraordinary operations continued to focus on developing technical 

expertise, which has enabled Tesmec to enjoy a position of technological leadership in the markets it operates in. 

More specifically, efforts continued on a number of projects which, with limited financial resources, have extended 

the offer of the stringing equipment segment to the new business of supplying products for the management and 

streamlining of power lines and the supply of wagons for railway network maintenance. In particular: 
 

� On 13 January 2012, Tesmec S.p.A. signed an agreement to invest in Bertel S.p.A. based in Piacenza. The 

Company is a start-up, operating in a market with a high technical profile such as that of streamlining 

systems of High-Voltage Power Networks and offers highly innovative technological solutions that are 

increasingly requested by the international customers already served by Tesmec today. 

Under the investment contract, Tesmec S.p.A. became a shareholder of Bertel by means of a private share 

capital increase of a nominal Euro 200 thousand, as a result of which it now holds 40% of Bertel’s share 

capital, plus subsequent payments by shareholders to the capital account, which boosted shareholders’ 

equity by Euro 500 thousand (against a total maximum commitment of Euro 1,500 thousand); 

 

� On 12 March 2012, the subsidiary company Tesmec Service S.r.l. signed a contract for the lease of a 

business unit related to the marketing and design of AMC2 Progetti e Prototipi S.r.l., a company that 
operates in mechanical design and electrical engineering services, and in the production of railway rolling 

stock for the maintenance of railway infrastructure. As a result of the above, Tesmec acquired 8 design 

engineers and two supporting figures, therefore enhancing its expertise in the field of vehicles for railway 

network maintenance, providing the company with the opportunity to expand its current product range in 

the area of machines for laying new railway networks;  

On 4 July 2012, Tesmec Service S.r.l. supplemented the previous lease contract with a lease contract for the 

production department, with a view to developing business relating to large orders acquired in Italy and 

abroad; 

By way of example, on 13 September 2012, as a result of the development of an innovative system for the 

electrification and maintenance of wire trains (“Production Wire Train”Production Wire Train”Production Wire Train”Production Wire Train”), the subsidiary company Tesmec 

USA, Inc obtained a contract for the supply of two railway wagons from the National Railroad Passenger National Railroad Passenger National Railroad Passenger National Railroad Passenger 

Corporation (“AMTRAK”)Corporation (“AMTRAK”)Corporation (“AMTRAK”)Corporation (“AMTRAK”), a group that operates in the United States in the area of out-of-city rail 
transport. This contract is worth 7.2 million US dollars in 2013, and has a renewal option for a further five 

years. 

This success, combined with other partnerships forged recently by the Tesmec Group with Rail Companies 

worldwide, such as Rete Ferroviaria Italiana (RFI) in Italy, the Ministry of Railways (MOR) in China, and 

Jernbaneverket (JBV) in Norway, confirm the level of excellence achieved by Italian technology in railway 

line electrification, by virtue of the high standards of quality required by RFI, particularly for high-speed 

lines; 

 

� On 6 September 2012, the parent company Tesmec S.p.A. sold its stake in Consorzio Lombartech S.c.a.r.l. 

recorded in the financial statements for Euro 2 thousands. 

 

� July saw the start-up of the photovoltaic system installed on the roofs of the industrial buildings at the 
Grassobbio plant, which will cover around one third of the plant’s total electricity requirement.  

 

� In addition, note that on 10 January 2012, the Shareholders' Meeting authorised the buy-back plan of 

treasury shares. The authorisation was granted for a period of 18 months; the Board of Directors, held on 

the same day, launched the plan and set the initial maximum quantity as 2% of Share Capital. From the 

launch of the buy-back plan to the date of the period covered by this report, 30 September 2012, a total of 

950,000 shares (0.89% of Share Capital) have been purchased at an average price of Euro 0.3538 (net of 

commission) for a total equivalent value of Euro 336,143. 

 

� Significant events that occurred in the first nine months of the year include the payment of dividends of 

Euro 3,205 thousand on 24 May 2012, corresponding to Euro 0.030 per share. 

 

Efforts continued with a view to boosting and consolidating the Group’s international presence in areas identified as 

having the highest growth potential and that are seen as potentially benefiting from the direct organisation of sales 

and technical assistance facilities: 

 

� Russia: the new Tesmec Rus branch, a subsidiary of Tesmec S.p.A., is now fully operational. Its objective is 

to sell Stringing machines and equipment to customers that operate on the local market; the branch has an 
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office facility, a warehouse and has staff for sales & marketing and technical assistance services; 

 

� South Africa: the Tesmec SA branch has been operational since September 2011, and is wholly owned by 

Tesmec S.p.A.. It sells and leases machines in the Trencher segment. The branch has an office facility and a 

warehouse for the machines and employs both sales and technical staff; 

 

� Saudi Arabia: JV Tesmec Peninsula, based in Qatar, has been operational since May 2011. The company 

sells Trencher machines and equipment in Saudi Arabia and neighbouring markets. The company has an 

office facility in Qatar and a leased warehouse in Saudi Arabia; 

 

� China: a representation office has been operational since July 2010, the purpose of the same is to promote 

sales activities, conduct market research, organise conferences, provide training and services to existing 
customers in China; 

 

� USA: sales in the United States are made entirely to final customers-users, replacing the network of 

distributors used in the past. 

 

 

4. Business activities, reference market and operational performance in the first nine 4. Business activities, reference market and operational performance in the first nine 4. Business activities, reference market and operational performance in the first nine 4. Business activities, reference market and operational performance in the first nine 

months of 2012months of 2012months of 2012months of 2012    

In addition to regular operating activities over the period, the Group consolidated the businesses of the new sales 

branches that in several cases got off to a slower start than initially expected (Saudi Arabia - Trencher), and 

integrated new expertise and products relating to recently-completed extraordinary transactions (I-light, Bertel and 

AMC2). The aim of the above was to: 
 

� exploit its widespread presence in international markets to extend the range of products and services 

offered, enhancing its ability to approach potential customers more as a provider of technologically 

advanced solutions that as a manufacturer of machines and equipment; 

 

� increase its presence in several countries, which have been identified as having the highest growth potential 

in terms of the current product range, by establishing branches where initial sales & marketing activities will 

gradually be extended to include technical assistance, spare parts management and the lease of machines, 

with or without operators.  

 

In these areas, the Group has therefore acquired considerable expertise, which will boost development in future 

years. 
 

As at 30 September 2012, the Group’s revenues were Euro 80,753, in line with those as at 30 September 2011, 

which were Euro 80,773, recovering the slowdown recorded in the first half of the year of -10.9% compared the 

same period of the previous year. A comparison between the third quarter of 2012 and the third quarter of 2011 

shows the Group’s revenues up by 24.8%, corresponding to Euro 6,105 thousand.  

 

A comparison with the first nine months of 2011 shows: 

 

� a 14.8% fall in revenues for the Trencher segment (better than the fall of 17.7% recorded for the first six 

months), mainly due to lower sales in the Middle East, where the efforts of the sales force were 

concentrated on finalising negotiations with customers that began at the end of 2011. This meant that at the 

end of the nine-month period, the stock of machines in this area had fallen to the point of receiving new 
orders from distributors in Qatar and Saudi Arabia for deliveries in the last quarter of the year. 

In the United States, the second most important market for this segment, sales corresponding to around 

95% of the final figure for 2011 were recorded in the nine-month period. This continually upward trend 

means that the end-of-year result is expected to show a marked improvement over last year.  

Note that sales in the United States are made entirely to final customers-users. This has meant the 

replacement of the network of distributors that was mainly used in the past. Part of this strategy has 

entailed the development of lease contracts for machines with an option to buy the same at the end of the 

lease, which has been exercised by the majority of final customers. 

 

� the Stringing equipment segment recorded an increase of 10.6%, resulting from a decrease of 6.7% 

recorded in the first half, offset by a 58% increase in the third quarter compared to the same period of the 



 

15 

previous year. 

A significant recovery in sales was also seen in this segment, above all in Europe, where investments for the 

maintenance of existing power lines (re-conductoring) recovered and in the United States, where JV 

Condux Tesmec recorded revenues of Euro 6.7 million, up 235% compared to the previous year. This 

confirms the value of the Group’s technological solutions sold on the American market. 

 

The profit margin shown by EBITDA (20.3%) is higher than that of the previous year (17.9%), with the same level of 

revenues, above all due to improvements in the Trencher segment, which benefited from a more favourable 

EUR/USD exchange rate, from the higher percentage of sales to customers-users, who traditionally pay higher 

prices than the indirect channel and from the completion of sales to third-party customers made by JV Tesmec 

Peninsula, as profit margins that to date had been outstanding were recognised in the accounts. 

The Stringing equipment segment, on the other hand, recorded lower profit margins due to a change in the sales 
mix. 

  

The table below summarises the revenue trends in the main areas, and shows an uptrend in Europe and North 

America, offset by a downtrend in the BRIC (Stringing equipment) and Middle East (Trencher) areas.   

 

  As at 30 SeptemberAs at 30 SeptemberAs at 30 SeptemberAs at 30 September    

(Euro in thousands)  2012201220122012    2011201120112011    

Italy 4,858 5,495 

Europe 18,787 13,710 

Middle East 11,728 17,545 

Africa 4,667 4,536 

North and Central America 17,815 11,114 

BRIC and Others 22,898 28,373 

Total revenuesTotal revenuesTotal revenuesTotal revenues    80,75380,75380,75380,753    80,77380,77380,77380,773    

 
The following table shows the major economic and financial indicators of the Group as at September 2012 

compared with the same period of 2011. 

 

30 September 201130 September 201130 September 201130 September 2011    
    

OVERVIEW OF OVERVIEW OF OVERVIEW OF OVERVIEW OF THETHETHETHE    FINANCIAL RESULTSFINANCIAL RESULTSFINANCIAL RESULTSFINANCIAL RESULTS    
    

30 September 201230 September 201230 September 201230 September 2012    

              

     
Key income statement dataKey income statement dataKey income statement dataKey income statement data (Euro in millions)    

  

80.8 
 

Operating Revenues 
 

80.8 

14.5 
 

EBITDA 
 

16.4 

10.3 
 

Operating Income 
 

11.7 

4.7 
 

Group Net Profit 
 

5.2 

     

        
Key financial position dataKey financial position dataKey financial position dataKey financial position data (Euro in millions)    

  

96.1 
 

Net Invested Capital 
 

101.4 

36.1 
 

Shareholders’ Equity (*) 
 

40.6 

60.0 
 

Net Financial Indebtedness 
 

60.8 

28.0 
 

Investments in tangible and intangible fixed assets 
 

8.1 

     

     
359 

 
Annual average employees 

 
388 
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Information on the main companies in operation in the nine-month period is provided below: 

  

� Tesmec USA Inc., a company which is 75% owned by Tesmec S.p.A. and 25% by Simest S.p.A. (Tesmec 

has the option to repurchase the latter shareholding), is based in Alvarado (Texas) and operates in the 

trencher segment. In the first nine months revenues amounted to Euro 13 million (against Euro 9 million in 

the same period of 2011) with a net profit of Euro 0.8 million (against a loss of Euro 0.6 million in 2011). In 

terms of revenues, the performance of this subsidiary reflects the first signs of market recovery and the 

results of the rapid positioning in the sector of Shale Gas, which is now developing business in several areas 

of the United States; in terms of the improvement of profit margins, this is due to the success of the 

commercial strategy to shorten the distribution channel; 

 

� Condux Tesmec Inc., a joint venture that is 50% owned by Tesmec S.p.A. and 50% by US shareholder 
Condux, which is based in Mankato (USA), has been operational since June 2009 and sells products on the 

North American stringing equipment market. The company was consolidated under the equity method and 

generated revenues of Euro 6.7 million in the first nine months of the year. It recorded a net profit of Euro 

0.4 million, a substantial improvement on the same period of the previous year, when it recorded revenues 

of Euro 2 million and a net profit of Euro 0.1 million; 

 

� Tesmec Peninsula WLL, Joint Venture established in March 2011, 49% of which is owned by Tesmec S.p.A., 

with the remainder owned by Tesmec Middle East which is owned by QBC one of the most important 

constructor in Qatar. The objective of the JV company, operational since May 2011, is to boost the 

commercial presence of the Trencher segment in the countries of the Arabian peninsula and to develop 

related service activities. The company was consolidated under the equity method and generated revenues 

of Euro 8.8 million in the first nine months of the year (against Euro 1.4 million as at 30 September 2011) 
and recorded a net loss of Euro 0.7 million; 

 

� OOO Tesmec RUS, a company which is 100% owned by Tesmec S.p.A, based in Moscow, operates in the 

stringing equipment segment. In the first nine months of the year, it recorded revenues of Euro 1.1 million 

and a net profit of Euro 0.2 million. The lease of a warehouse and the hiring of commercial and technical 

staff have provided the company with the resources it needs to run its operations as envisaged.  

 

� Tesmec SA (Pty) Ltd, based in Johannesburg (South Africa), 100% owned by Tesmec S.p.A., it operates in 

the Trencher segment and generated revenues of Euro 0.7 million, with a net profit of Euro 0.2 million 

resulting from new lease contracts signed in the second quarter. 

 

 

5.Income statement and balance5.Income statement and balance5.Income statement and balance5.Income statement and balance    sheet situation as at 30 September 2012 sheet situation as at 30 September 2012 sheet situation as at 30 September 2012 sheet situation as at 30 September 2012     

 

Balance sheetBalance sheetBalance sheetBalance sheet    
 

Information is provided below on the Group's main equity indicators, as at 30 September 2012 compared to 31 

December 2011. In particular, the following table shows the reclassified sources and uses and funds from the 

consolidated balance sheet as at 30 September 2012 and as at 31 December 2011: 

 

(Euro in thousands)  

As at 30 September As at 30 September As at 30 September As at 30 September 
2012201220122012    

As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December 
2011201120112011    

USESUSESUSESUSES    
  

Net working capital 
(1)

 49,149 48,381 

Fixed assets 51,105 48,225 

Other long-term assets and liabilities 1,105 1,879 

Net invested capitalNet invested capitalNet invested capitalNet invested capital
(2)(2)(2)(2)

    101,359101,359101,359101,359    98,48598,48598,48598,485    

SOURCESSOURCESSOURCESSOURCES    
  

Net financial indebtedness 
(3)

 60,794 59,598 

Shareholders’ equity 40,565 38,887 

Total sources of fundingTotal sources of fundingTotal sources of fundingTotal sources of funding    101,359101,359101,359101,359    98,48598,48598,48598,485    
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(1)
The net working capital is calculated as current assets net of current liabilities excluding financial assets and liabilities. Net working capital is not 

recognised as a measure of performance by the IFRS. The valuation criteria applied by the Company may not necessarily be the same as those 
adopted by other groups and therefore the balance obtained by the Company may not necessarily be comparable therewith. 
(2)

The net invested capital is calculated as net working capital plus fixed assets and other long-term assets less long-term liabilities. The net 
invested capital is not recognised as a measure of financial performance or liquidity under IFRS. The valuation criteria applied by the Company 
may not necessarily be the same as those adopted by other groups and therefore the balance obtained by the Company may not necessarily be 
comparable therewith. 
(3)

Net financial indebtedness is calculated as the sum of cash and cash equivalents, current financial assets including available–for–sale securities, 
non-current financial liabilities, the fair value of hedging instruments and other non-current financial assets. 
 

    

A) Net working capitalA) Net working capitalA) Net working capitalA) Net working capital    

 

The breakdown of “Net Working Capital” as at 30 September 2012 and 31 December 2011 is as follows:  

 

(Euro in thousands)  

As at 30 September As at 30 September As at 30 September As at 30 September 
2012201220122012    

As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December 
2012012012011111    

Trade receivables 41,171 43,902 

Inventories 43,516 42,081 

Trade payables (30,132) (26,529) 

Other current assets/(liabilities) (5,406) (11,073) 

Net working capital Net working capital Net working capital Net working capital 
(1)(1)(1)(1)

    49,14949,14949,14949,149    48,38148,38148,38148,381    

 
(1)

The net working capital is calculated as current assets net of current liabilities excluding financial assets and liabilities. Net working capital is not 
recognised as a measure of performance by the IFRS. The valuation criteria applied by the Company may not necessarily be the same as those 
adopted by other groups and therefore the balance obtained by the Company may not necessarily be comparable therewith. 
 

The net working capital of Euro 49,149 thousand rose Euro 768 thousand compared to 31 December 2011 (1.6%). 

 

The rise in inventories (3.4%) was addressed to production and to cover the sales envisaged for the last quarter of 

the year.  

Other current assets/(liabilities) fell by 51.2% mainly due to (i) a fall in the amount of IRES tax due of Euro 610 

thousand and (ii) to a fall of Euro 4,840 thousand in customer advances following the dispatch of the orders to 
which the same referred. 

 

 

B) Fixed assets and other longB) Fixed assets and other longB) Fixed assets and other longB) Fixed assets and other long----term assetsterm assetsterm assetsterm assets    

 

The table below shows a breakdown of “Fixed assets and other long term assets” as at 30 September 2012 and 31 

December 2011: 

 

(Euro in thousands)  

As at 30 September As at 30 September As at 30 September As at 30 September 
2012201220122012    

As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December 
2011201120112011    

Intangible assets 7,752 7,963 

Property, plant and equipment 41,117 38,881 

Equity investments in associates  2,233 1,379 

Other equity investments 3 2 

Fixed assets and other longFixed assets and other longFixed assets and other longFixed assets and other long----term assetsterm assetsterm assetsterm assets    51,10551,10551,10551,105    48,22548,22548,22548,225    

 

Fixed assets and other long-term assets increased from Euro 48,225 thousand as at 31 December 2011 to Euro 51,105 

thousand as at 30 September 2012, up 6.0%. A more detailed analysis of changes in the main categories of fixed 

assets is provided below: 

� a decrease in intangible assets of Euro 211 thousand, mainly due to the effect of the development costs 

capitalised during 2012 of Euro 2,356 thousand, offset by amortisation for the period (Euro 2,396 

thousand). These development costs refer to costs incurred by the Group’s technical office for developing 

new models for the Stringing equipment segment as well as the Trencher equipment segment based on 

demand from existing customers in the key markets; more specifically, note that in the first nine months of 

2012, new projects were launched to develop  systems to streamline High-Voltage Power Networks with a 
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view to offering highly innovative technological solutions, which are becoming of increasing interest to 

international customers;  

� an increase in property, plant and equipment of Euro 2,236 thousand due to: (i) investments in the period of 

Euro 5,698 thousand of which Euro 3,909 regard the extension of the trencher fleet to cover new lease 

contracts in South Africa and America, of which Euro 1,512 thousand in the “plant and equipment” category, 

relating to the purchase of the photovoltaic system for the Grassobbio facility amounting to Euro 1,200, 

offset (ii) by depreciation for the period of Euro 2,098 thousand and (iii) the sale of two trenchers following 

the exercise of the purchase-option envisaged in the lease contracts; 

� an increase in equity investments in associates of Euro 854 thousand due to the combined effect of the 

acquisition of the shareholding in Bertel S.p.A. recorded in the financial statements for Euro 686 thousand 

and the adjustment of the value of equity investments consolidated under the equity method. 

 
 

C) Net financial indebtednessC) Net financial indebtednessC) Net financial indebtednessC) Net financial indebtedness    

 
Details of the breakdown of “Net financial indebtedness” as at 30 September 2012 and 31 December 2011 are as 

follows: 

 

(Euro in thousands)  

As at 30 As at 30 As at 30 As at 30 

September 2012September 2012September 2012September 2012    

of which with of which with of which with of which with 
related parties related parties related parties related parties 

and groupand groupand groupand group    

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 

December 2011December 2011December 2011December 2011    

of which with of which with of which with of which with 
related parties related parties related parties related parties 

and groupand groupand groupand group    

Cash and cash equivalents  (7,370) 
 

(13,817) 
 

Current financial assets 
(1)

 (7,752) (6,260) (2,358) (1,157) 

Current financial liabilities 37,874 875 25,390 740 

Current portion of derivative financial instruments 3 
 

- 
 

Current financial indebtedness Current financial indebtedness Current financial indebtedness Current financial indebtedness 
(2)(2)(2)(2)

    22,75522,75522,75522,755    (5,385)(5,385)(5,385)(5,385)    9,2159,2159,2159,215    (417)(417)(417)(417)    

Non-current financial liabilities 37,337 18,273 50,060 18,946 

Non-current portion of derivative financial 
instruments 

702 
 

323 
 

NonNonNonNon----current financial indebtedness current financial indebtedness current financial indebtedness current financial indebtedness 
(2)(2)(2)(2)

    38,03938,03938,03938,039    18,27318,27318,27318,273    50,38350,38350,38350,383    18,94618,94618,94618,946    

Net financial indebtedness pursuant to Net financial indebtedness pursuant to Net financial indebtedness pursuant to Net financial indebtedness pursuant to 
CONSOB Communication No. CONSOB Communication No. CONSOB Communication No. CONSOB Communication No. 
DEM/6064293/2006DEM/6064293/2006DEM/6064293/2006DEM/6064293/2006    

60,79460,79460,79460,794    12,88812,88812,88812,888    59,59859,59859,59859,598    18,52918,52918,52918,529    

 
(1)

Current financial assets as at 30 September 2012 and 31 December 2011 include the market value of shares and warrants listed on the Italian 
Stock Exchange (Borsa Italiana), which are therefore considered cash and cash equivalents. 
  
(2)

Current and non-current financial payables are not identified as an accounting element by the IFRS. The valuation criteria applied by the Group 
may not necessarily be the same as those adopted by other groups and therefore the balances obtained by the Group may not be comparable 
with therewith. 

 

As at 30 September 2012 the Group’s net financial indebtedness amounted to Euro 60,794 thousand in decrease 

compared at 30 June 2012 (Euro 65,830 thousand). 

In the first nine months of 2012, the Group’s net financial indebtedness increased by Euro 1,196 thousand compared to 

2011, due to the combined effect of the following changes: 

 

� an increase in current financial assets, which rose from Euro 2,358 thousand to Euro 7,752 thousand, due to 

the signature of short-term loan agreements with third party customers/distributors, with regard to which, 

the largest change regarded Tesmec Peninsula WLL, amounting to Euro 4,937 thousand; these financial 

receivables will accrue interest at a rate established in the agreement and repayment is envisaged within 12 
months; 

� an increase in current financial liabilities, which rose from Euro 25,390 thousand to Euro 37,874 thousand 

mainly due to the reclassification of the short-term portion of loans; 

� a decrease in non-current financial liabilities, which fell from Euro 50,060 thousand to Euro 37,337 thousand 

following the reclassification of the figure of Euro 19,866 thousand (of which Euro 18,594 thousand related 

to loans and Euro 1,272 thousand to lease contracts) to current financial payables. This amount was offset 

by the establishment of new medium-long term loans totalling Euro 7 million. 
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Income statementIncome statementIncome statementIncome statement    

 
The comments provided below refer to the comparison of the consolidated income statement figures as at 30 

September 2012 with those as at 30 September 2011.  

The main income figures for the first nine months of 2012 and 2011 are presented in the table below: 

 

  30 September30 September30 September30 September    

(Euro in thousands)  
2012201220122012    

% of % of % of % of 
revrevrevrevenuesenuesenuesenues    

2011201120112011    
% of % of % of % of 

revenuesrevenuesrevenuesrevenues    

Revenues from sales and servicesRevenues from sales and servicesRevenues from sales and servicesRevenues from sales and services    80,75380,75380,75380,753    100.0%100.0%100.0%100.0%    80,77380,77380,77380,773    100.0%100.0%100.0%100.0%    

Cost of raw materials and consumables (35,578) -44.1% (39,431) -48.8% 

Cost of services  (14,843) -18.4% (14,920) -18.5% 

Payroll costs (14,600) -18.1% (13,194) -16.3% 

Other operating (costs)/revenues, net (1,527) -1.9% (1,373) -1.7% 

Depreciation and amortisation (4,697) -5.8% (4,216) -5.2% 

Development costs capitalised 2,190 2.7% 2,627 3.3% 

Total operating costsTotal operating costsTotal operating costsTotal operating costs    (69,055)(69,055)(69,055)(69,055)    ----85.5%85.5%85.5%85.5%    (70,507)(70,507)(70,507)(70,507)    ----87.3%87.3%87.3%87.3%    

Operating incomeOperating incomeOperating incomeOperating income    11,611,611,611,698989898    14.5%14.5%14.5%14.5%    10,26610,26610,26610,266    12.7%12.7%12.7%12.7%    

Financial expenses (5,218) -6.5% (3,656) -4.5% 

Financial income 1,891 2.3% 1,085 1.3% 

Portion of gains/(losses) from equity investments evaluated using the 

equity method 
(182) -0.2% (165) -0.2% 

PrePrePrePre----tax profittax profittax profittax profit    8,1898,1898,1898,189    10.1%10.1%10.1%10.1%    7,5307,5307,5307,530    9.39.39.39.3%%%%    

Income tax (2,978) -3.7% (2,803) -3.5% 

Net profit for the periodNet profit for the periodNet profit for the periodNet profit for the period    5,2115,2115,2115,211    6.5%6.5%6.5%6.5%    4,7274,7274,7274,727    5.9%5.9%5.9%5.9%    

Profit / (loss) attributable to non-controlling interests - 0.0% ----    0.0% 

Group profitGroup profitGroup profitGroup profit    5,2115,2115,2115,211    6.5%6.5%6.5%6.5%    4,7274,7274,7274,727    5.9%5.9%5.9%5.9%    

 

 

A restatement of the income statement figures representing the performance of EBITDA is provided below: 

 

      30 September30 September30 September30 September    

(Euro in thousands)  2012201220122012    % of revenues% of revenues% of revenues% of revenues    2011201120112011    % of revenues% of revenues% of revenues% of revenues    2012 vs. 20112012 vs. 20112012 vs. 20112012 vs. 2011    

Operating income 11,698 14.5% 10,266 12.7% 1,432 

+ Depreciation and amortisation 4,697 5.8% 4,216 5.2% 481 

EBITEBITEBITEBITDA DA DA DA 
(*)(*)(*)(*)

    16,39516,39516,39516,395    20.3%20.3%20.3%20.3%    14,48214,48214,48214,482    17.9%17.9%17.9%17.9%    1,9131,9131,9131,913    

 
(****) The EBITDA is represented by the operating income before depreciation and amortisation. The EBITDA thus defined represents a 
measurement used by Company management to monitor and assess the company’s operating performance. EBITDA is not recognised as a 
measure of performance by the IFRS and therefore is not to be considered an alternative measurement for assessing the performance of the 
Group’s operating income. As the composition of the EBITDA is not governed by the reference accounting standards, the criterion for 
determination applied by the Group may not be in line with the criterion adopted by others and is therefore not comparable. 

 

Revenues as at 30 September 2012 showed an increase in the Stringing equipment segment of 10.6% and a 

decrease in the Trencher segment of 14.8% compared to the same period of the previous year. In the Stringing 

equipment segment, market demand was concentrated in America and Europe, and regarded the maintenance of 

existing power lines in particular. In the Trencher segment, results for the first nine months confirmed expectations, 

particularly as regards the American market, where efforts to develop direct sales to final users rather than using 

local distributors continued, while the Middle East market recorded tangible results of projects launched at the end 

of the previous year.  

In terms of percentage margin, EBITDA represents 20.3% of revenues, an improvement on the 17.9% recorded for 

the first nine months of 2011, due to the insourcing of several stages of the production process retained strategic and 
economically viable with respect to outsourcing arrangements. 

The performance of the Trencher segment influenced the above result, where, in addition to a more favourable 

EUR/USD exchange rate (average exchange rate for the first nine months of 2012 was 1.282 against 1.406 in 2011), 
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the segment benefited from higher margins recorded in the US market, where efforts are being made to shift from 

sales through distributors to direct sales, and sales to third parties through JV Tesmec Peninsula, enabled a part of 

the margins not recorded in the financial statements as at 31 December 2011 to be included in the accounts. 

Net financial management fell Euro 773 thousand, with the following breakdown:  

� Euro 381 thousand resulting from different EUR/USD exchange rate trends in the two periods compared, 

which resulted in net losses (realised and unrealised) of Euro 122 thousand being recorded in the first nine 

months of 2012 against a net profit of Euro 259 thousand in the first nine months of 2011; 

� Euro 382 thousand due to the downward adjustment to fair value of derivatives compare to the downward 

adjustment of Euro 236 thousand in the first nine months of 2011; 

� higher borrowing costs due mainly to the increase of the interest rates applied to the sources of funding 

utilised. 

    

    

6.Management and types of financial risks 6.Management and types of financial risks 6.Management and types of financial risks 6.Management and types of financial risks     
 

For the management of financial risks, please see the paragraph “Financial risk management policy” contained in the 

Explanatory Notes to the Annual Consolidated Financial Statements for 2011, where the Group’s policies in relation 

to the management of financial risks are presented. 

 

 

7.Atypical and/or unusual and non7.Atypical and/or unusual and non7.Atypical and/or unusual and non7.Atypical and/or unusual and non----recurring transactions with related parties recurring transactions with related parties recurring transactions with related parties recurring transactions with related parties     
 

In compliance with the Consob communications of 20 February 1997, 27 February 1998, 30 September 1998, 30 

September 2002 and 27 July 2006, we specify that during the first nine months of 2012, no transactions took place 

with related parties of an atypical or unusual nature that are far removed from the company’s normal operations or 

such as to harm the income statement, balance sheet or financial results of the Group. 

For significant intercompany and related parties information please see paragraph “Related party transactions” in 

the Explanatory Notes. 

 

 

8. Group Employees8. Group Employees8. Group Employees8. Group Employees    
 

The average number of Group employees in the first nine months of 2012, including the employees of consolidated 

companies was 388, compared to 359 in 2011. Note that the increase is mostly due to the gradual shift from 

traditional indirect sales channels (distributors) to direct sales channels both in the parent company and in 

established (Tesmec Usa) or newly-established foreign subsidiaries (OOO Tesmec Rus and Tesmec SA), and to the 
arrival of employees with technical skills relating to recent projects undertaken in the railway segment (AMC2) and 

to the streamlining of power networks (I-light). 

 

 

9.Other information9.Other information9.Other information9.Other information    

    

Italian Legislative Decree no. 196/2003 Italian Legislative Decree no. 196/2003 Italian Legislative Decree no. 196/2003 Italian Legislative Decree no. 196/2003 ----The Privacy Act The Privacy Act The Privacy Act The Privacy Act     

 

Pursuant to Italian Legislative Decree no. 196 of 30 June 2003 “Code regarding the protection of personal data”, the 

Company proceeded to reassess and adjust its security systems in light of the standards required by the relevant 

legislation. 
Within the timeframe set by the law, the Company prepared and updated the Security Policy Document in which the 

measures protecting the processing of personal data and the operating structure in charge of processing and 

managing this data are described. 

The security measures adopted by the company are periodically updated each year, in relation to progress in science 

and technology or the evolution of the organisation itself, so as to ensure the security of the data and its related 

processing. 

 

Treasury shares 

On 10 January 2012, the Shareholders' Meeting authorised the buy-back plan of treasury shares. Authorisation for 

the same was granted for a period of 18 months; the Board of Directors, held on the same day, launched the plan and 

set the initial maximum quantity as 2% of Share Capital. From the launch of the buy-back plan to the date of the 
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period covered by this report, 30 September 2012, a total of 950,000 shares (0.89% of Share Capital) have been 

purchased at an average price of Euro 0.3538 (net of commission) for a total equivalent value of Euro 336,143. 

 

 

Subsequent events and business outlookSubsequent events and business outlookSubsequent events and business outlookSubsequent events and business outlook    

 

With regard to the authorisation to purchase treasury shares approved by the Shareholders' meeting of 10 January 

2012 (already disclosed under article 144 bis of the Consob regulation no. 11971/99), we hereby inform you that: 

in the period between 1 October 2012 and the date of approval of this Report, 150,000 shares (0.14% of Share 

Capital) were purchased at an average price of Euro 0.396 for a total amount net of commission of Euro 59,443. 

Between the launch of the buy-back plan and the date of approval of this report, a total of 1,100,000 shares (1% of 

the Share Capital) were purchased at an average price of Euro 0.36 (net of commission) for a total equivalent value 

of Euro 395,587. 

 

 
Today, the board of directors of Tesmec S.p.A. has been convened to approve the appropriate changes to the 

articles of association to comply with Law 120/2011 (Golfo-Mosca), which envisages that at least one third of the 

members of the boards of directors and boards of statutory auditors of companies listed on regulated markets must 

belong to “the less represented gender”, and that for first-time application, said portion must be at least one fifth.  

 

The situation of outstanding orders and the increase in the number of ongoing negotiations in both the Stringing 

equipment segment, where in addition to traditional projects in line-laying, important orders are being received in 

the area of railway line maintenance, and in the Trencher segment, where the positive trend of the US market has 

been boosted by a recovery in orders in the Middle East market, leading to prospects of an increase in sales volumes 

over the next few months, with respect to the past nine months, which will result in higher structural profit margins 

for the Group. 
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Consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 September 2012 and 31 December Consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 September 2012 and 31 December Consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 September 2012 and 31 December Consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 September 2012 and 31 December 

2011201120112011    

(Euro in thousands) 
NotesNotesNotesNotes        30 September 201230 September 201230 September 201230 September 2012    31 December 2031 December 2031 December 2031 December 2011111111    

NONNONNONNON––––CURRENT ASSETSCURRENT ASSETSCURRENT ASSETSCURRENT ASSETS          

Intangible assets  1 7,752 7,963  

Property, plant and equipment  2 41,117 38,881  

Equity investments evaluated using the equity method   2,233 1,379  

Other equity investments   3 2  

Financial receivables and other non-current financial assets   635 982  

Derivative financial instruments                                             -      - 

Deferred tax assets   4,122 4,771  

TOTAL NONTOTAL NONTOTAL NONTOTAL NON––––CURRENT ASSETSCURRENT ASSETSCURRENT ASSETSCURRENT ASSETS      55,86255,86255,86255,862    53,97853,97853,97853,978    

CURRENT ASSETSCURRENT ASSETSCURRENT ASSETSCURRENT ASSETS          

Inventories 3 43,516 42,081  

Trade receivables 4 41,171 43,902  

of which due from subsidiaries, related parties and joint ventures: 4 4,945 13,493  

Tax receivables   4 -  

Other available-for-sale securities 105 102  

Financial receivables and other current financial assets       5 7,647 2,256  

of which due from subsidiaries, related parties and joint ventures: 5 6,260 1,157  

Other current assets   2,080 2,351  

of which with subsidiaries, related parties and joint ventures:   - 279  

Derivative financial instruments   - -  

Cash and cash equivalents 12  7,370 13,817  

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETSTOTAL CURRENT ASSETSTOTAL CURRENT ASSETSTOTAL CURRENT ASSETS      101,893101,893101,893101,893    104,509104,509104,509104,509    

TOTAL ASSETSTOTAL ASSETSTOTAL ASSETSTOTAL ASSETS      157,755157,755157,755157,755    158,487158,487158,487158,487    

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITYSHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITYSHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITYSHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY          

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO PARENT COMPANY SHAREHOLDERSEQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO PARENT COMPANY SHAREHOLDERSEQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO PARENT COMPANY SHAREHOLDERSEQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO PARENT COMPANY SHAREHOLDERS          

Share capital 6 10,708 10,708 

Reserves / (deficit) 6 24,646 21,589 

Group net profit / (loss)   5,211 6,590 

TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO PARENT COMPANY SHAREHOLDERSTOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO PARENT COMPANY SHAREHOLDERSTOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO PARENT COMPANY SHAREHOLDERSTOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO PARENT COMPANY SHAREHOLDERS      40,56540,56540,56540,565    38,88738,88738,88738,887    

NONNONNONNON----CONTROLLING INTERESTSCONTROLLING INTERESTSCONTROLLING INTERESTSCONTROLLING INTERESTS          

Non-controlling interest in capital and reserves / (deficit)                                                                                                                                   ----        ----    

Net profit / (loss) for the period attributable to non-controlling interests                                                                                                                                   ----        ----        

TOTAL NONTOTAL NONTOTAL NONTOTAL NON----CONTROLLING INTERESTSCONTROLLING INTERESTSCONTROLLING INTERESTSCONTROLLING INTERESTS                                                                                                                                      ----        ----    

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITYTOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITYTOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITYTOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY      40,56540,56540,56540,565    38,88738,88738,88738,887    

NONNONNONNON––––CURRENT LIABILITIESCURRENT LIABILITIESCURRENT LIABILITIESCURRENT LIABILITIES          

Medium-long term loans 7 37,337 50,060  

of which with subsidiaries, related parties and joint ventures: 7 18,273 18,946  

Derivative financial instruments   702 323  

Employee benefit liability   2,460 2,503  

Deferred tax liabilities   1.192 1,371  

TOTAL NONTOTAL NONTOTAL NONTOTAL NON––––CURRENT LIABILITIESCURRENT LIABILITIESCURRENT LIABILITIESCURRENT LIABILITIES      41,69141,69141,69141,691    54,25754,25754,25754,257    

CURRENT LIABILITIESCURRENT LIABILITIESCURRENT LIABILITIESCURRENT LIABILITIES          

Interest-bearing financial payables (current portion) 8 37,874 25,390  

of which to subsidiaries, related parties and joint ventures: 8 875 740  

Derivative financial instruments   3 -  

Trade payables 9 30,132 26,529  

of which to subsidiaries, related parties and joint ventures: 9 89 35  

Advances from customers 10 518 5,358  

Income taxes payable  11 1,118 1,877  

Provisions for risks and charges   1,266  1,797  

Other current liabilities   4,588 4,392  

of which with subsidiaries, related parties and joint ventures:   - 17  

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIESTOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIESTOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIESTOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES      75,49975,49975,49975,499    65,34365,34365,34365,343    

TOTAL LIABILITIESTOTAL LIABILITIESTOTAL LIABILITIESTOTAL LIABILITIES      117,190117,190117,190117,190    119,600119,600119,600119,600    

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIESTOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIESTOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIESTOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES      157,755157,755157,755157,755    158,487158,487158,487158,487    
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ConsolidatConsolidatConsolidatConsolidated income statement as at ed income statement as at ed income statement as at ed income statement as at 30 30 30 30 September 2012 and 2011September 2012 and 2011September 2012 and 2011September 2012 and 2011    

    

   
As at 30 SeptemberAs at 30 SeptemberAs at 30 SeptemberAs at 30 September    

(Euro in thousands)  NotesNotesNotesNotes    2012201220122012    2011201120112011    

Revenues from sales and servicesRevenues from sales and servicesRevenues from sales and servicesRevenues from sales and services    13 80,75380,75380,75380,753    80,77380,77380,77380,773    

   of which with subsidiaries, related parties and joint ventures: 
 

1,801 6,706 

Cost of raw materials and consumables 
 

(35,578) (39,431) 

   of which with subsidiaries, related parties and joint ventures: 
 

(89) (16) 

Cost of services  
 

(14,843) (14,920) 

   of which with subsidiaries, related parties and joint ventures: 
 

79  (116) 

Payroll costs 
 

(14,600) (13,194) 

Other operating (costs)/revenues, net 
 

(1,527) (1,373) 

   of which with subsidiaries, related parties and joint ventures: 
 

(360) (221) 

Depreciation and amortisation 
 

(4,697) (4,216) 

Development costs capitalised 
 

2,190  2,627  

ToToToTotal operating coststal operating coststal operating coststal operating costs    14 (69,055)(69,055)(69,055)(69,055)    (70,507)(70,507)(70,507)(70,507)    

Operating incomeOperating incomeOperating incomeOperating income    
 

11,698 11,698 11,698 11,698     10,266 10,266 10,266 10,266     

Financial expenses 
 

(5,218) (3,656) 

   of which with subsidiaries, related parties and joint ventures: 
 

(919) (803) 

Financial income 
 

1,891  1,085  

   of which with subsidiaries, related parties and joint ventures: 
 

36  45  

Portion of gains/(losses) from equity investments evaluated using the 
equity method  

(182) (165) 

PrePrePrePre----tax profittax profittax profittax profit    
 

8,189 8,189 8,189 8,189     7,530 7,530 7,530 7,530     

Income tax 
 

(2,978) (2,803) 

Net profit for the periodNet profit for the periodNet profit for the periodNet profit for the period    
 

5,211 5,211 5,211 5,211     4,727 4,727 4,727 4,727     

Profit Profit Profit Profit / (loss) attributable to non/ (loss) attributable to non/ (loss) attributable to non/ (loss) attributable to non----controlling interestscontrolling interestscontrolling interestscontrolling interests    
 

----        ----        

Group profit (loss)Group profit (loss)Group profit (loss)Group profit (loss)    
 

5,2115,2115,2115,211    4,7274,7274,7274,727    

Basic and diluted earnings per shareBasic and diluted earnings per shareBasic and diluted earnings per shareBasic and diluted earnings per share                                                                                              0.049 0.049 0.049 0.049                                                                                             0.044 0.044 0.044 0.044     
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income as aConsolidated statement of comprehensive income as aConsolidated statement of comprehensive income as aConsolidated statement of comprehensive income as at 30 September 2012 and 2011t 30 September 2012 and 2011t 30 September 2012 and 2011t 30 September 2012 and 2011    

    

      
As at 30 SeptemberAs at 30 SeptemberAs at 30 SeptemberAs at 30 September    

(Euro in thousands) NotesNotesNotesNotes    2012201220122012    2011201120112011    

NET PROFIT FOR THE PERIODNET PROFIT FOR THE PERIODNET PROFIT FOR THE PERIODNET PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD                                                                                                            5,211 5,211 5,211 5,211     4,727 4,727 4,727 4,727     

Other components of comprehensive income:Other components of comprehensive income:Other components of comprehensive income:Other components of comprehensive income:          

Exchange differences on conversion of foreign financial statements   (1)                          (298)  

Total other Total other Total other Total other incomeincomeincomeincome/(losses) /(losses) /(losses) /(losses) net of net of net of net of taxtaxtaxtaxationationationation            (1)(1)(1)(1)    (298)(298)(298)(298)    

Total comprehensive income (loss) before taxTotal comprehensive income (loss) before taxTotal comprehensive income (loss) before taxTotal comprehensive income (loss) before tax            5,210 5,210 5,210 5,210                                                                                             4,4294,4294,4294,429    

Attributable to:       

Equity holders of the parent company   5,210 4,429 

Minority interests                                   -  - 
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Statement of consolidated cash flows as at 30 September 201Statement of consolidated cash flows as at 30 September 201Statement of consolidated cash flows as at 30 September 201Statement of consolidated cash flows as at 30 September 2012 and 20112 and 20112 and 20112 and 2011    

      
As at 30 SeptemberAs at 30 SeptemberAs at 30 SeptemberAs at 30 September    

(Euro in thousands)  NotesNotesNotesNotes    2012201220122012    2011201120112011    

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     
     

Net profit for the period 
 

5,211 4,727 

Adjustments to reconcile net income for the period with the cash flows 
generated by (used in) operating activities:   

    

Depreciation and amortisation  
 

4,697 4,216 

Provisions for employee benefits payable 
 

526 69 

Provisions for risks and charges / inventory obsolescence / doubtful 

accounts  
107 193 

Employee benefit payments 
 

(568) (504) 

Payments of provisions for risks and charges 
 

(529) (179) 

Net change in deferred tax assets and liabilities 
 

465  98  

Change in fair value of financial instruments 
 

382  318  

Change in current assets and liabilities:  
 

  
 

Trade receivables 4 (2,238) (547) 

Inventories 3 (1,434) (1,267) 

Trade payables  
 

3,655  (3,410) 

Other current assets and liabilities 
 

(300) (2,147) 

NET CASH FLOW GENERATED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)NET CASH FLOW GENERATED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)NET CASH FLOW GENERATED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)NET CASH FLOW GENERATED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)    
    

9,974 9,974 9,974 9,974     1,567 1,567 1,567 1,567     

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     
 

    

Investments in property, plant and equipment 2 (5,689) (2,611) 

Investments in intangible assets 1 (2,388) (3,068) 

(Investments) / disposal of financial assets 
 

(5,896) (3,102) 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible 
assets  

1,306  2,570  

NET CASH FLOW (USED NET CASH FLOW (USED NET CASH FLOW (USED NET CASH FLOW (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)    
    

(12,667)(12,667)(12,667)(12,667)    (6,211)(6,211)(6,211)(6,211)    

NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIESNET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIESNET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIESNET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES    
 

    

Disbursement of medium-long term loans  12 7,142  14,911  

Repayment of medium-long term loans  12 (5,924) (10,724) 

Net change in short-term financial debt 12 (1,427) 5,252  

Other changes 6 (327) (30) 

Dividend distribution 6 (3,205) (2,998) 

Capital injection for share capital increase 
 

-  -  

NET CASH FLOW GENERATED BY (USED IN) FINANCING NET CASH FLOW GENERATED BY (USED IN) FINANCING NET CASH FLOW GENERATED BY (USED IN) FINANCING NET CASH FLOW GENERATED BY (USED IN) FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES (C)ACTIVITIES (C)ACTIVITIES (C)ACTIVITIES (C)        

(3,741)(3,741)(3,741)(3,741)    6,411 6,411 6,411 6,411     

TOTAL CASH FLOW FOR THE PERIOD (D=A+B+C)TOTAL CASH FLOW FOR THE PERIOD (D=A+B+C)TOTAL CASH FLOW FOR THE PERIOD (D=A+B+C)TOTAL CASH FLOW FOR THE PERIOD (D=A+B+C)    
    

(6,434)(6,434)(6,434)(6,434)    1,767 1,767 1,767 1,767     

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS (E)EQUIVALENTS (E)EQUIVALENTS (E)EQUIVALENTS (E)     

(13) (2) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 

PERIOD (F)PERIOD (F)PERIOD (F)PERIOD (F)     
13,817  7,767  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 

(G=D+E+F)(G=D+E+F)(G=D+E+F)(G=D+E+F)        
7,370 7,370 7,370 7,370     9,532 9,532 9,532 9,532     

AdditionAdditionAdditionAdditional information:al information:al information:al information:    
 

    

Interest paid 
 

2,923  2,226  

Income tax paid 
 

3,030  3,563  
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Statement of changes in consolidated shareholders’ equity as at 30 September 2012 and Statement of changes in consolidated shareholders’ equity as at 30 September 2012 and Statement of changes in consolidated shareholders’ equity as at 30 September 2012 and Statement of changes in consolidated shareholders’ equity as at 30 September 2012 and 

2011201120112011    

    

  

Share capitalShare capitalShare capitalShare capital    Legal reserveLegal reserveLegal reserveLegal reserve    
Share premium Share premium Share premium Share premium 

reservereservereservereserve    
Translation Translation Translation Translation 

reservereservereservereserve    
Other Other Other Other 

rererereservesservesservesserves    

Reserve of Reserve of Reserve of Reserve of 
Treasury Treasury Treasury Treasury 

SharesSharesSharesShares     
Profit for Profit for Profit for Profit for 

the periodthe periodthe periodthe period     

Total Equity Total Equity Total Equity Total Equity 
attributable to attributable to attributable to attributable to 

Parent Parent Parent Parent 
Company Company Company Company 

ShareholdersShareholdersShareholdersShareholders     

Total nonTotal nonTotal nonTotal non----
controlling controlling controlling controlling 

interestsinterestsinterestsinterests     

    Total Total Total Total 
Shareholders’ Shareholders’ Shareholders’ Shareholders’ 

equity equity equity equity (Euro in thousands) 

                      

Balance as at 1 January Balance as at 1 January Balance as at 1 January Balance as at 1 January 
2012012012012222    

10,708 10,708 10,708 10,708     1,126 1,126 1,126 1,126     10,915 10,915 10,915 10,915     63 63 63 63     9,485 9,485 9,485 9,485     ----        6,590 6,590 6,590 6,590     38,887 38,887 38,887 38,887     ----        38,887 38,887 38,887 38,887     

Profit for the period -  -  -  -  -  -  5,211  5,211  -  5,211  

Other profits / (losses) -  -  -  (1) -  -  -  (1) -  (1) 

Total comprehensive Total comprehensive Total comprehensive Total comprehensive 
income / (loss)income / (loss)income / (loss)income / (loss)    

              5,210 5,210 5,210 5,210     ----        5,210 5,210 5,210 5,210     

Allocation of profit from 
the previous year 

-  376  -  -  3,002  7  (3,385) -  -  -  

Dividend distribution -  -  -  -  -  -  (3,205) (3,205) -  (3,205) 

Increase in share capital -  -  -  -  -  (327) -  (327) -  (327) 

Balance as at 30 Balance as at 30 Balance as at 30 Balance as at 30 
September 2012September 2012September 2012September 2012    

10101010,708 ,708 ,708 ,708     1,502 1,502 1,502 1,502     10,915 10,915 10,915 10,915     62 62 62 62     12,487 12,487 12,487 12,487     (320)(320)(320)(320)    5,211 5,211 5,211 5,211     40,565 40,565 40,565 40,565     ----        40,565 40,565 40,565 40,565     

    

    

  

Share capitalShare capitalShare capitalShare capital    Legal reserveLegal reserveLegal reserveLegal reserve    
Share premium Share premium Share premium Share premium 

reservereservereservereserve    
Translation Translation Translation Translation 

reservereservereservereserve    
Other Other Other Other 

reservesreservesreservesreserves    

Reserve of Reserve of Reserve of Reserve of 
Treasury Treasury Treasury Treasury 

SharesSharesSharesShares     
Profit for Profit for Profit for Profit for 

the periodthe periodthe periodthe period     

Total Equity Total Equity Total Equity Total Equity 
attributable attributable attributable attributable 

to Parent to Parent to Parent to Parent 
Company Company Company Company 

ShareholShareholShareholShareholdersdersdersders     

Total nonTotal nonTotal nonTotal non----
controlling controlling controlling controlling 

interestsinterestsinterestsinterests     

    Total Total Total Total 
Shareholders’ Shareholders’ Shareholders’ Shareholders’ 

equity equity equity equity     (Euro in thousands) 

                      

Balance as at 1 January Balance as at 1 January Balance as at 1 January Balance as at 1 January 
2011201120112011    

10,70810,70810,70810,708    798798798798    10,91510,91510,91510,915    (517)(517)(517)(517)    7,5837,5837,5837,583    ----        5,2435,2435,2435,243    34,73034,73034,73034,730    9999                34,739 34,739 34,739 34,739     

Profit for the period                  -                   -                     -                   -                -  -  4,727 4,727 -            4,727  

Change in the scope of 
consolidation 

                 -                   -                      -                   -  (21) -  -  (21) (9) (30) 

Other profits / (losses)                  -                   -  -  (298)               -  -               -  (298) -  (298) 

Total comprehensive Total comprehensive Total comprehensive Total comprehensive 
income / (loss)income / (loss)income / (loss)income / (loss)          

  4,4084,4084,4084,408    (9)(9)(9)(9)                        4,399 4,399 4,399 4,399     

Allocation of profit from the 
previous year 

                -  328                     -                  -  1,917 -  (2,245)                 -                   -                    -   

Dividend distribution                  -                   -                      -                  -                -  -  (2,998) (2,998)                  -  (2,998) 

Other changes                  -                   -                      -                   -                -  -               -  -  -  -  

Balance as at 30 Balance as at 30 Balance as at 30 Balance as at 30 
September 2011September 2011September 2011September 2011    

10,70810,70810,70810,708    1,1261,1261,1261,126    10,91510,91510,91510,915    (815)(815)(815)(815)    9,4799,4799,4799,479    ----        4,7274,7274,7274,727    36,14036,14036,14036,140    ----                        36,140 36,140 36,140 36,140     
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Explanatory notesExplanatory notesExplanatory notesExplanatory notes    

    

Accounting policies adopted in preparing the consolidated financial statements as at 30 Accounting policies adopted in preparing the consolidated financial statements as at 30 Accounting policies adopted in preparing the consolidated financial statements as at 30 Accounting policies adopted in preparing the consolidated financial statements as at 30 

September 2012September 2012September 2012September 2012    

 

 

1.Company information1.Company information1.Company information1.Company information    

The parent company Tesmec S.p.A. (hereinafter “Parent Company” or “Tesmec”) is a legal entity organised in 

accordance with the legal system of the Italian Republic. The ordinary shares of Tesmec have been listed on the 

MTA STAR Segment of the Milan Stock Exchange since 1 July 2010. The registered office of the Tesmec Group 

(hereinafter “Group” or “Tesmec Group”) is in Milan, Piazza S. Ambrogio no. 16. 

 

 

2. Reporting standards2. Reporting standards2. Reporting standards2. Reporting standards    

The consolidated financial statements as at 30 September 2012 have been prepared in condensed form in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), by using the methods for preparing interim 

financial reports provided by IAS 34 Interim financial reporting.  
 

The financial statement reporting formats adopted by the Group, the accounting standards and the consolidation 

methods, the consolidation of foreign companies and the translation methods of foreign currency items and the 

measurement bases adopted in the preparation of the condensed consolidated financial statements as at 30 

September 2012 are in compliance with those used for the Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31 December 

2011, to which reference is made for completeness of treatment. 

More precisely, the consolidated statement of financial position, income statement, statement of comprehensive 

income, statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and statement of cash flows are drawn up in extended form 

and are in the same format adopted for the Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2011. The 

explanatory notes to the financial statements indicated below are in condensed form and therefore do not include all 

the information required for annual financial statements. In particular, as provided by IAS 34, in order to avoid 

repeating already disclosed information, the notes refer exclusively to items of the consolidated statement of 
financial position, income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in shareholders’ 

equity and statement of cash flows whose breakdown or change, with regard to amount, type or unusual nature, are 

significant to understanding the economic and financial situation of the Group.  

 

Since the interim consolidated financial statements do not disclose all the information required in preparing the 

consolidated annual financial statements, they must be read together with the consolidated financial statements as 

at 31 December 2011.  

 

Note that, to better represent the financial statement contents, tax receivables and payables not relative to income 

tax for the period have been reclassified, in line with 2011, under “other current assets/liabilities”. 

 

The consolidated financial statements as at 30 September 2012 comprise the consolidated statement of financial 
position, consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes 

in consolidated shareholders’ equity, statement of consolidated cash flows and related explanatory notes. 

Comparative figures are disclosed as required by IAS 34 (31 December 2011 for the statement of financial position 

and as at 30 September 2011 for the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive 

income, statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flow statement).  

 

The consolidated financial statements as at 30 September 2012 are presented in Euro and all values are rounded to 

the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated. 

 

The publication of the consolidated financial statements of the Tesmec Group for the period ended 30 September 

2012 was authorised by the Board of Directors on 9 November 2012. 
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The exchange rates used to determine the countervalue in Euros of the financial statements of subsidiary companies 

expressed in foreign currency (exchange rate to 1 Euro) are shown below:  

 

  

Average exchange rateAverage exchange rateAverage exchange rateAverage exchange rate    EndEndEndEnd----ofofofof----period exchange rateperiod exchange rateperiod exchange rateperiod exchange rate    

as at 30 Septemberas at 30 Septemberas at 30 Septemberas at 30 September    as at 30 Septembas at 30 Septembas at 30 Septembas at 30 Septemberererer    

  2012201220122012    2011201120112011    2012201220122012    2011201120112011    

US Dollar 1.282 1.406 1.293 1.350 

Qatar Riyal 4.667 5.121 4.708 4.916 

South African Rand 10.313 9,818 10.713 10.909 

Bulgarian Lev 1.956 1.956 1.956 1.956 

Russian Rouble 39.796 40.480 40.140 43.350 

 

 

 

3. New accounting standa3. New accounting standa3. New accounting standa3. New accounting standardsrdsrdsrds    

The accounting standards adopted for the preparation of the condensed consolidated financial statements as at 30 
September 2012 are the same as those adopted for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the 

year ended 31 December 2011, with the exception of the adoption as of 1 January 2012 of the new standards, of 

changes to existing standards and of the interpretations listed below: 

 

� IAS 12 - Deferred tax: recovery of underlying assets   

This amendment to IAS 12 includes the clear assumption that the carrying value of an investment property, 

measured using the fair value model envisaged by IAS 40 will be recovered through its sale and that, as a 

consequence, the relative deferred tax asset should be measured on a sale basis. This assumption is refuted 

if the investment property is depreciated and held for the purpose of using substantially all of the benefits 

resulting from said investment property over time, instead of realising said benefits through its sale.  More 

specifically, IAS 12 requires that the deferred tax asset arising from an asset not depreciated, measured 

using the revaluation model envisaged by IAS 16, must always reflect the tax impact of the recovery of the 
carrying value of the underlying asset through its sale. The effective date of adoption of the amendment is 

for tax years starting 1 January 2012 or subsequent. This amendment had no impact on the Group’s results. 

 

� IFRS 1 - Severe hyperinflation and removal of fixed dates for first time adopters   

When the date of transition to IFRSs corresponds to or is subsequent to the functional currency 

normalisation date, the company may decide to measure all of the assets and liabilities held prior to the 

normalisation date at their fair value on the date of transition to IFRSs. The fair value may be used as the 

assumed cost of said assets and liabilities in the opening IFRS statement of financial position. In any event, 

this exemption may only be applied to assets and liabilities that have been subject to serious hyperinflation.  

The effective date of adoption of the amendment is for tax years starting 1 July 2011 or subsequent, early 

adoption is permitted. This amendment had no impact on the Group’s results. 

 
These amendments have not yet been approved by the European Union and are not applicable to the 

condensed consolidated financial statements as at 30 September 2012.   

� IFRS 7 - Disclosures - Transfers of financial assets  

The IASB has issued an amendment to IFRS 7, which improves disclosures relating to financial assets. The 

disclosure refers to transferred assets (as defined by IAS 39). If the transferred assets are not entirely 

derecognised from the financial statements, the company must disclose information that enables users of 

its financial statements to understand the relationship between transferred financial assets that are not 

derecognised and the associated liabilities. If the transferred assets are entirely derecognised, but the 

company maintains continuing involvement, information must be disclosed that enables users of the 

financial statements to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated with, the continuing involvement in 

derecognised financial assets.   The effective date of adoption of the amendment is for tax years starting 1 

July 2011 or subsequent; comparative information is not required. This amendment had no impact on the 
financial position or on the performance of the Group. 

 

The Group has not adopted in advance any other standard, interpretation or improvement issued but not yet in 

force.   
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4444.Conso.Conso.Conso.Consolidation methods and arealidation methods and arealidation methods and arealidation methods and area    

As at 30 September 2012, the consolidation area had changed with respect to 31 December 2011 following the 

agreement to invest in Bertel S.p.A. signed on 13 January 2012.Under said agreement, Tesmec S.p.A. became a 

shareholder of Bertel by means of a private share capital increase of a nominal Euro 200 thousand, as a result of 

which it now holds 40% of Bertel’s share capital, plus subsequent payments by shareholders to the capital account, 

which boosted shareholders’ equity by Euro 500 thousand; 
 

On 6 September 2012, the parent company Tesmec S.p.A. sold its entire investment in recorded in Consorzio 

Lombartech S.c.a.r.l. recorded in the financial statements for Euro 1,879. 

    

    

5. Significant events occurred during the period5. Significant events occurred during the period5. Significant events occurred during the period5. Significant events occurred during the period    

� On 13 January 2012, Tesmec S.p.A. signed an agreement to invest in Bertel S.p.A. based in Piacenza. The 

company is a start-up, operating in a market with a high technical profile such as that of streamlining 

systems of High-Voltage Power Networks and offers highly innovative technological solutions that are 

increasingly requested by the international customers already served by Tesmec today. 

Under the investment contract, Tesmec S.p.A. became a shareholder of Bertel by means of a private share 

capital increase of a nominal Euro 200 thousand, as a result of which it now holds 40% of Bertel’s share 

capital, plus subsequent payments by shareholders to the capital account, which boosted shareholders’ 

equity by Euro 500 thousand (against a total maximum commitment of Euro 1,500 thousand); 

 

� on 12 March 2012, the subsidiary company Tesmec Service S.r.l. signed a contract for the lease of a 

business unit related to the marketing and design of AMC2 Progetti e Prototipi S.r.l., a company that 
operates in mechanical design and electrical engineering services, and in the production of railway rolling 

stock for the maintenance of railway infrastructure. As a result of the above, Tesmec acquired 8 design 

engineers and two supporting figures, therefore enhancing its expertise in the field of vehicles for railway 

network maintenance, providing the company with the opportunity to expand its current product range in 

the area of machines for laying new railway networks;  

On 4 July 2012, Tesmec Service S.r.l. supplemented the previous lease contract with a lease contract for the 

production department, with a view to developing business relating to large orders acquired in Italy and 

abroad; 

By way of example, on 13 September 2012, as a result of the development of an innovative system for the 

electrification and maintenance of wire trains (“Production Wire Train”Production Wire Train”Production Wire Train”Production Wire Train”), the subsidiary company Tesmec 

USA, obtained a contract for the supply of two railway wagons from the National Railroad Passenger National Railroad Passenger National Railroad Passenger National Railroad Passenger 

Corporation (“AMTRAK”)Corporation (“AMTRAK”)Corporation (“AMTRAK”)Corporation (“AMTRAK”), a group that operates in the United States in the area of out-of-city rail 
transport. This contract is worth 7.2 million US dollars in 2013, and has a renewal option for a further five 

years. 

This success, combined with other partnerships forged recently by the Tesmec Group with Rail Companies 

worldwide, such as Rete Ferroviaria Italiana (RFI) in Italy, the Ministry of Railways (MOR) in China, and 

Jernbaneverket (JBV) in Norway, confirm the level of excellence achieved by Italian technology in railway 

line electrification, by virtue of the high standards of quality required by RFI, particularly for high-speed 

lines; 

 

� On 6 September 2012, the parent company Tesmec S.p.A. sold its stake in Consorzio Lombartech S.c.a.r.l. 

recorded in the financial statements for Euro 1,879. 

 

� July saw the start-up of the photovoltaic system installed on the roofs of the industrial buildings at the 
Grassobbio plant, which will cover around one third of the plant’s total electricity requirement.  

 

� In addition, note that on 10 January 2012, the Shareholders' Meeting authorised the buy-back plan of 

treasury shares. The authorisation was granted for a period of 18 months; the Board of Directors, held on 

the same day, launched the plan and set the initial maximum quantity as 2% of Share Capital. From the 

launch of the buy-back plan to the date of the period covered by this report, 30 September 2012, a total of 

950,000 shares (0.89% of Share Capital) have been purchased at an average price of Euro 0.3538 (net of 

commission) for a total equivalent value of Euro 336,143. 

 

� Significant events that occurred in the first nine months of the year include the payment of dividends of 

Euro 3,205 thousand on 24 May 2012, corresponding to Euro 0.030 per share. 
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO MAIN FIGURES IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSEXPLANATORY NOTES TO MAIN FIGURES IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSEXPLANATORY NOTES TO MAIN FIGURES IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSEXPLANATORY NOTES TO MAIN FIGURES IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS    

 

1. Intangible assets  

 

The breakdown and changes in “Intangible assets” as at 30 September 2012 and as at 31 December 2011 are shown 

in the table below: 

 

  
01/01/201201/01/201201/01/201201/01/2012    

Increases Increases Increases Increases 
due to due to due to due to 

purchasespurchasespurchasespurchases    
DecreasesDecreasesDecreasesDecreases    ReclassificationsReclassificationsReclassificationsReclassifications    AmortisationAmortisationAmortisationAmortisation    

Exchange Exchange Exchange Exchange 
rate rate rate rate 

differendifferendifferendifferencescescesces    
30/09/201230/09/201230/09/201230/09/2012    

(Euro in thousands) 

Development costs           7,077  2,356 - - (2,396) - 7,037 

Rights and trademarks              492  32 - 394 (203) - 715 

Goodwill               394  - - (394) - - - 

Assets in progress and 
advance payments to 
suppliers 

- - - - - - - 

Total intangible assetsTotal intangible assetsTotal intangible assetsTotal intangible assets    7,9637,9637,9637,963    2,3882,3882,3882,388    ----    ----    (2,599)(2,599)(2,599)(2,599)    ----    7,7527,7527,7527,752    

 

Intangible assets amounted to Euro 7,752 thousand as at 30 September 2012, and were down by Euro 211 thousand 
against the previous year mainly due to development costs capitalised during the first nine months of 2012 of Euro 

2,356 thousand, entirely offset by the amortisation for the period (Euro 2,396 thousand). These costs are related to 

projects for the development of new products and equipment that are expected to generate positive cash flows in 

future years. 

 

“Goodwill” relating to the acquisition of the I-light business division by the subsidiary company Tesmec Service S.r.l. 

in July 2011, as envisaged by IFRS 3, was allocated to “Rights and trademarks” insofar as it relates to know-how 

acquired and amortised over a five year period. 

 

Where signs of impairment and the result of impairment tests suggest that the value of a project will not be 

recovered by the generation of future cash flows, it is fully amortised in the financial period. 

 
 

2. Property, plant and equipment  

 

The breakdown and changes in “Property, plant and equipment” as at 30 September 2012 and as at 31 December 

2011 are shown in the table below: 

 

  
01/01/201201/01/201201/01/201201/01/2012    

Increases Increases Increases Increases 
due to due to due to due to 

purchasespurchasespurchasespurchases    
DecreasesDecreasesDecreasesDecreases    ReclassiReclassiReclassiReclassificationsficationsficationsfications    DepreciationDepreciationDepreciationDepreciation    

Exchange Exchange Exchange Exchange 
rate rate rate rate 

differencesdifferencesdifferencesdifferences    
30/09/201230/09/201230/09/201230/09/2012    

(Euro in thousands) 

Land 4,196 -  -  -  -  -  4,196 

Buildings 23,172 34 - -  (553) 5 22,658 

Plant and machinery 5,595 1,512 (81) -  (777) -  6,249 

Equipment 597 87 -  -  (190) -  494 

Other assets 5,032 3,909 (1,216) -  (578) (54) 7,093 

Assets in progress and 
advance payments to 

suppliers 

289 147 (9) -   - -  427 

Total property, plant Total property, plant Total property, plant Total property, plant 

and equipmentand equipmentand equipmentand equipment    
38,88138,88138,88138,881    5,6895,6895,6895,689    (1,306)(1,306)(1,306)(1,306)                                                                            ----        (2,098)(2,098)(2,098)(2,098)    (49)(49)(49)(49)    41,11741,11741,11741,117    

 

As at 30 September 2012, property, plant and equipment totalled Euro 41,117 thousand, up Euro 2,236 thousand on 
the previous year.  

This increase was due to: (i) investments in the period of Euro 5,689 thousand of which Euro 3,909 regard the 

extension of the trencher fleet to cover new lease contracts in South Africa and America, of which Euro 1,512 

thousand in the “plant and equipment” category, relating to the purchase of the photovoltaic system for the 

Grassobbio facility amounting to Euro 1,200, offset (ii) by depreciation for the period of Euro 2,098 thousand and 

(iii) the sale of two trenchers following the exercise of the purchase-option envisaged in the lease contracts. 

3. Inventories  
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The following table provides a breakdown of “Inventories” as at 30 September 2012 compared to 31 December 2011:  

 

(Euro in thousands) 

As at 30 September As at 30 September As at 30 September As at 30 September 
2012201220122012    

As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December 
2011201120112011    

Raw materials and consumables 25,968 26,500 

Work in progress 9,158 6,073 

Finished goods and merchandise 8,031 9,009 

Advances to suppliers for assets 359 499 

Total InventoriesTotal InventoriesTotal InventoriesTotal Inventories    43,51643,51643,51643,516    42,08142,08142,08142,081    

 

Compared to 31 December 2011, inventories recorded an increase of Euro 1,435 thousand addressed to 
manufacturing the products required to cover sales forecast for the last quarter of the year.  

 

 

4. Trade receivables  

 

The following table provides a breakdown of “Trade receivables” as at 30 September 2012 and as at 31 December 

2011:  

 

(Euro in thousands) 

As at 30 September As at 30 September As at 30 September As at 30 September 

2012201220122012    

As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December 

2011201120112011    

Trade receivables from third-party customers 36,226 30,409 

Trade receivables from associates, related parties and joint ventures 4,945 13,493 

Total trade receivablesTotal trade receivablesTotal trade receivablesTotal trade receivables    41,17141,17141,17141,171    43,90243,90243,90243,902    

 

Trade receivables fell by 6.2% compared to 31 December 2011 due to the following: 

 

� an increase in the item trade receivables from third-party customers of Euro 5,817 thousand, associated 

with non-structural factors mainly attributable to the time needed to collect payments for sales in the 

Trencher segment in the Middle East; 

� a decrease in trade receivables from related parties of Euro 8,548 thousand due, on one hand to payments 

received and on the other to the reclassification of the receivable due from JV Tesmec Peninsula WLL of 
Euro 4,937 thousand to current financial receivables. 

 

 

5. Financial receivables and other current financial assets 

 

The following table provides a breakdown of “Financial receivables and other current financial assets” as at 30 

September 2012 and as at 31 December 2011: 
 

(Euro in thousands) 

As at 30 September As at 30 September As at 30 September As at 30 September 

2012201220122012    

As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December 

2011201120112011    

Financial receivables due from associates, related parties and joint ventures 6,260 1,157 

Financial receivables from third parties 1,310 1,025 

Guarantee deposits 51 - 

Other current financial assets 26 74 

Total financial receivables and other current financial assetsTotal financial receivables and other current financial assetsTotal financial receivables and other current financial assetsTotal financial receivables and other current financial assets    7,6477,6477,6477,647    2,2562,2562,2562,256    

 

 

The increase in financial receivables and other current financial assets (Euro 5,391 thousand) is due to the following 

factors: 
� the signature of short-term loan agreements with third party customers/distributors, with regard to which, 

the largest change regarded Tesmec Peninsula WLL, amounting to Euro 4,937 thousand; these financial 
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receivables will accrue interest at a rate established in the agreement and repayment is envisaged within 12 

months; 

� the reclassification of the short-term portion resulting from recognition under IAS 17 of lease contracts by 

the associated company Tesmec. 

 

 

6. Equity 

 

“Share capital” amounts to Euro 10,708 thousand, fully paid up, and comprises 107,084,000 shares with a par value 

of Euro 0.1 each.  

 

The following table provides a breakdown of “Other reserves” as at 30 September 2012 and as at 31 December 2011: 

 

 

(Euro in thousands) 

As at 30 September As at 30 September As at 30 September As at 30 September 
2012201220122012    

As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December 
2011201120112011    

Revaluation reserve 86 86 

Change in the scope of consolidation - (24) 

Extraordinary reserve 13,654 9,728 

Retained earnings/(losses brought forward) 2,795 3,743 

Bills charged directly to equity 
  

on operations with entities under common control (4,048) (4,048) 

Total other reservesTotal other reservesTotal other reservesTotal other reserves    12,48712,48712,48712,487    9,4859,4859,4859,485    

 

 

The revaluation reserve is a reserve in respect of which tax has been deferred, set up in accordance with Italian Law 

No. 72/1983. 

 

Following the resolution of 26 April 2012, the Shareholders’ Meeting approved the allocation of 2011 profits of Euro 

7,514 thousand as follows: 

� Euro 376 thousand to the legal reserve; 

� Euro 3,926 thousand to the extraordinary reserve; 

� Euro 7 thousand to the reserve of treasury Shares; 

� Distribution of dividends of Euro 3,205 thousand, corresponding to Euro 0.030 per share; 

 

 

7. Medium-long term loans  

 

“Medium-long term loans” includes medium-long term loans from banks, payables to other providers of finance and 

payables to leasing companies for property, plant and equipment recorded in the consolidated financial statements 
in accordance with the financial lease accounting method. 

 

During the first nine months of 2012, medium-long term loans fell by Euro 12,723 thousand following the 

reclassification of the figure of Euro 19,866 thousand (of which Euro 18,594 thousand related to loans and Euro 1,272 

thousand to lease contracts) to current financial payables.  

Said amount was offset by the signature of new medium-long term loans totalling Euro 7 million. 
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8. Interest-bearing financial payables (current portion) 

 

The following table provides details of this item as at 30 September 2012 and as at 31 December 2011: 

 

(Euro in thousands) 

As at 30 September As at 30 September As at 30 September As at 30 September 

2012201220122012    

AAAAssss    aaaatttt    31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 

2011201120112011    

Advances from banks against invoices and bills receivables 14,103 15,147 

Short-term portion of financial leases 1,654 1,494 

Advances from factoring companies 848 1,057 

Current account overdrafts - 210 

Current portion of medium-long term loans 21,269 7,482 

Total interestTotal interestTotal interestTotal interest----bearing financial payables (current portion)bearing financial payables (current portion)bearing financial payables (current portion)bearing financial payables (current portion)    37,87437,87437,87437,874    25,39025,39025,39025,390    

 

Advances from banks amounted to Euro 14,103 thousand and fell by Euro 1,044 thousand as a result of a lesser use of 

advances on export invoices given the credit facilities obtained at more favourable conditions. 

 

The current portion of medium-long term loans increased by Euro 13,787 thousand following the reclassification of the 

short-term portion of Euro 18,597 thousand, offset by the repayment of Euro 4,810 thousand. 

 

 

9. Trade payables 

 

The following table provides a breakdown of “Trade payables” as at 30 September 2012 and as at 31 December 

2011:  

 

(Euro in thousands) 

As at 30 September As at 30 September As at 30 September As at 30 September 

2012201220122012    

AAAAssss    aaaatttt    31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 

2011201120112011    

Trade payables due to third-parties 30,043 26,494 

Trade payables due to associates, related parties and joint ventures 89 35 

Total trade payablesTotal trade payablesTotal trade payablesTotal trade payables    30,13230,13230,13230,132    26,52926,52926,52926,529    

 

Trade payables as at 30 September 2012 corresponding to Euro 30,132 thousand rose by Euro 3,603 thousand 

following the increase in inventories and in investments made. 

 

 

10. Advances from customers 

The decrease in this item is related to the completion of supply orders for which the Group has received advances in 

the previous period.  

 

 

11. Income taxes payable 

 

The following table provides details of “Income taxes payable” as at 30 September 2012 and as at 31 December 

2011: 

 

(Euro in thousands) 

As at 30 September As at 30 September As at 30 September As at 30 September 
2012201220122012    

AAAAssss    aaaatttt    31 Decemb31 Decemb31 Decemb31 December er er er 
2011201120112011    

Current IRES tax liabilities 606 1,216 

Current IRAP tax liabilities 512 661 

Total income taxes payableTotal income taxes payableTotal income taxes payableTotal income taxes payable    1,1181,1181,1181,118    1,8771,8771,8771,877    

 
 

Income taxes payable as at 30 September 2012 fell compared to the prior period by Euro 759 thousand following the 

decrease in current IRES and IRAP tax liabilities related to the first nine months of the period. 
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12. Net financial indebtedness 

 

Details of the breakdown of “Net financial indebtedness” as at 30 September 2012 and 31 December 2011 are as 

follows: 

 

(Euro in thousands)  

As at 30 As at 30 As at 30 As at 30 

September 2012September 2012September 2012September 2012    

of which with of which with of which with of which with 
related parties related parties related parties related parties 

and groupand groupand groupand group    

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 

December 2011December 2011December 2011December 2011    

of which with of which with of which with of which with 
related parties related parties related parties related parties 

and groupand groupand groupand group    

Cash and cash equivalents  (7,370) 
 

(13,817) 
 

Current financial assets 
(1)

 (7,752) (6,260) (2,358) (1,157) 

Current financial liabilities 37,874 875 25,390 740 

Current portion of derivative financial instruments 3 
 

- 
 

Current financial indebtedness Current financial indebtedness Current financial indebtedness Current financial indebtedness 
(2)(2)(2)(2)

    22,75522,75522,75522,755    (5,385)(5,385)(5,385)(5,385)    9,2159,2159,2159,215    (417)(417)(417)(417)    

Non-current financial liabilities 37,337 18,273 50,060 18,946 

Non-current portion of derivative financial 

instruments 
702 
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NonNonNonNon----current financial indebtedness current financial indebtedness current financial indebtedness current financial indebtedness 
(2)(2)(2)(2)

    38,03938,03938,03938,039    18,27318,27318,27318,273    50,38350,38350,38350,383    18,94618,94618,94618,946    

Net financial indebtedness pursuant to Net financial indebtedness pursuant to Net financial indebtedness pursuant to Net financial indebtedness pursuant to 
CONSOB Communication No. CONSOB Communication No. CONSOB Communication No. CONSOB Communication No. 
DEM/6064293/2006DEM/6064293/2006DEM/6064293/2006DEM/6064293/2006    

60,79460,79460,79460,794    12,88812,88812,88812,888    59,59859,59859,59859,598    18,52918,52918,52918,529    

 
(1)

Current financial assets as at 30 September 2012 and 31 December 2011 include the market value of shares and warrants listed on the Italian 
Stock Exchange (Borsa Italiana), which are therefore considered cash and cash equivalents. 
  
(2)

Current and non-current financial payables are not identified as an accounting element by the IFRS. The valuation criteria applied by the Group 
may not necessarily be the same as those adopted by other groups and therefore the balances obtained by the Group may not be comparable 
with therewith. 

 

As at 30 September 2012 the Group’s net financial indebtedness amounted to Euro 60,794 thousand in decrease 

compared at 30 June 2012 (Euro 65,830 thousand). 

In the first nine months of 2012, the Group’s net financial indebtedness increased by Euro 1,196 thousand compared to 

2011, due to the combined effect of the following changes: 

 

� an increase in current financial assets, which rose from Euro 2,358 thousand to Euro 7,752 thousand, due to 

the signature of short-term loan agreements with third party customers/distributors, with regard to which, 

the largest change regarded Tesmec Peninsula WLL, amounting to Euro 4,937 thousand; these financial 

receivables will accrue interest at a rate established in the agreement and repayment is envisaged within 12 
months; 

� an increase in current financial liabilities, which rose from Euro 25,390 thousand to Euro 37,874 thousand 

mainly due to the reclassification of the short-term portion of loans; 

� a decrease in non-current financial liabilities, which fell from Euro 50,060 thousand to Euro 37,337 thousand 

following the reclassification of the figure of Euro 19,866 thousand (of which Euro 18,594 thousand related 

to loans and Euro 1,272 thousand to lease contracts) to current financial payables. This amount was offset 

by the establishment of new medium-long term loans totalling Euro 7 million. 

 

 

13. Revenues from sales and services  

 

The table below shows the breakdown of “Revenues from sales and services” as at 30 September 2012 compared 

with the same period of 2011:  
 

  30 September30 September30 September30 September    

(Euro in thousands) 2012201220122012    2011201120112011    

Sales of products 77,598 79,146 

Services rendered 3,155 1,627 

Total revenues from sales and servicesTotal revenues from sales and servicesTotal revenues from sales and servicesTotal revenues from sales and services    80,75380,75380,75380,753    80,77380,77380,77380,773    
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As at 30 September 2012, the Group had recorded revenues of Euro 80,753, in line with those recorded as at 30 

September 2011 of Euro 80,773, recovering the slow-down recorded in the first half of -10.9%. A comparison 

between the third quarter of 2012 and the third quarter of 2011 shows the Group’s revenues up by 24.8%, 

corresponding to Euro 6,105 thousand.  

 

A 14.8% fall in revenues for the Trencher segment (better than the fall of 17.7% recorded for the first six months), 

mainly due to lower sales in the Middle East, where the efforts of the sales force were concentrated on finalising 

negotiations with customers that began at the end of 2011. This meant that at the end of the nine-month period, the 

stock of machines in this area had fallen to the point of receiving new orders from distributors in Qatar and Saudi 

Arabia for deliveries in the last quarter of the year. 

In the United States, the second most important market for this segment, sales corresponding to around 95% of the 

final figure for 2011 were recorded in the nine-month period. This continually upward trend means that the end-of-
year result is expected to show a marked improvement over last year.  

Note that sales in the United States are made entirely to final customers-users. This means that the network of 

distributors has now been fully replaced with direct sales channels. Another strategy pursued regarded the provision 

of lease contracts with a purchase-option at the end of the lease, which was exercised by the majority of final 

customers. 

 

The Stringing equipment segment recorded an increase of 10.6%, resulting from a decrease of 6.7% recorded in the 

first half, offset by a 58% increase in the third quarter compared to the same period of the previous year. 

This segment also recorded a considerable recovery of sales, driven by the European and US markets, where 

Tesmec’s offering was able to benefit from its position of technological leadership. 

 

 

14. Operating costs  

 

The following table provides the breakdown of “Operating costs” as at 30 September 2012 and as at 30 September 

2011: 

 

  30 September30 September30 September30 September    

(Euro in thousands) 2012201220122012    2011201120112011    

Cost of raw materials and consumables (35,578) (39,431) 

   of which with subsidiaries, related parties and joint ventures: (89) (16) 

Cost of services  (14,843) (14,920) 

   of which with subsidiaries, related parties and joint ventures: 79 (116) 

Payroll costs (14,600) (13,194) 

Other operating (costs)/revenues, net (1,527) (1,373) 

   of which with subsidiaries, related parties and joint ventures: (360) (221) 

Depreciation and amortisation (4,697) (4,216) 

Development costs capitalised 2,190 2,627 

Total operating costsTotal operating costsTotal operating costsTotal operating costs    (69,055)(69,055)(69,055)(69,055)    (70,507)(70,507)(70,507)(70,507)    

 

Operating costs totalled Euro 69,055 thousand, down on the same period of last year by 2.1%, even though revenues 

were the same. The insourcing of several stages of the production process retained strategic and more economically 

viable with respect to outsourcing arrangements led to an increase in payroll costs, more than offset by the savings 

generated by the fall in the purchase volumes of semi-finished goods. 
These costs represent 85.5% of revenues for the period, lower than the same period of the previous year, in which 

they represented 87.3%.  

 

Segment Reporting 

 

For management purposes, Tesmec Group is organised into strategic business units on the basis of the nature of the 
goods and services supplied, and presents two operating segments for disclosure purposes: 

 

� Stringing equipment: this segment is involved in the design, production and marketing of integrated 

solutions for the stringing and maintenance of underground and aerial very high, high and medium voltage 

electric power lines, stringing equipment for underground and overhead optic fibre cables, as well as 

integrated solutions for the stringing and maintenance of electric power lines for railways. The Stringing 
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equipment segment machines are produced at the Italian production plants of Grassobbio (Bergamo), 

Endine Gaiano (Bergamo), Sirone (Lecco) and Monopoli (Bari) and the US plant of Alvarado (Texas); 

� Trencher: this segment is involved in the design, production and marketing of integrated solutions that 

entail the use of high powered crawler trenching machines for the linear excavation of underground power 

lines and pipelines or for other excavation operations and, on a smaller scale, Gallmac multipurpose 

machines. The Trencher segment products are manufactured at the Grassobbio (Bergamo) and Sirone 

(Lecco) production plants in Italy, and at the Alvarado plant in Texas in the USA. 

 

  30 September30 September30 September30 September    

  2012201220122012    2011201120112011    

(Euro in thousands) 
Stringing Stringing Stringing Stringing 

equipmentequipmentequipmentequipment    
TrencherTrencherTrencherTrencher    ConsolidatedConsolidatedConsolidatedConsolidated    

Stringing Stringing Stringing Stringing 
equipmentequipmentequipmentequipment    

TrencherTrencherTrencherTrencher    ConsolidatedConsolidatedConsolidatedConsolidated    

Revenues from sales and services 52,057 28,696 80,753 47,085 33,688 80,773 

Operating costs net of depreciation and 
amortisation 

(41,628) (22,730) (64,358) (36,195) (30,096) (66,291) 

EBITDA EBITDA EBITDA EBITDA     10,42910,42910,42910,429    5,9665,9665,9665,966    16,39516,39516,39516,395    10,89010,89010,89010,890    3,5923,5923,5923,592    14,48214,48214,48214,482    

Depreciation and amortisation (1,670) (3,027) (4,697) (1,279) (2,937) (4,216) 

Total operating costs Total operating costs Total operating costs Total operating costs     (43,298)(43,298)(43,298)(43,298)    (25,757)(25,757)(25,757)(25,757)    (69,055)(69,055)(69,055)(69,055)    (37,474)(37,474)(37,474)(37,474)    (33,033)(33,033)(33,033)(33,033)    (70,507)(70,507)(70,507)(70,507)    

Operating incomeOperating incomeOperating incomeOperating income    8,7598,7598,7598,759    2,9392,9392,9392,939    11,69811,69811,69811,698    9,6119,6119,6119,611    655655655655    10,26610,26610,26610,266    

Net financial income/(expenses) 
  

(3,509) 
  

(2,736) 

PrePrePrePre----tax profittax profittax profittax profit    
  

8,1898,1898,1898,189    
  

7,5307,5307,5307,530    

Income tax 
  

(2,978) 
  

(2,803) 

Net profit for the periodNet profit for the periodNet profit for the periodNet profit for the period    
  

5,2115,2115,2115,211    
  

4,7274,7274,7274,727    

Profit / (loss) attributable to non-
controlling interests   

- 
  

- 

Group profit (loss)Group profit (loss)Group profit (loss)Group profit (loss)    
  

5,2115,2115,2115,211    
  

4,7274,7274,7274,727    

 
 (*) The EBITDA is represented by the operating income gross of depreciation and amortisation. The EBITDA thus defined represents a 
measurement used by Company management to monitor and assess the company’s operating performance. EBITDA is not recognised as a 
measure of performance by the IFRS and therefore is not to be considered an alternative measurement for assessing the performance of the 
Group’s operating income. As the composition of the EBITDA is not governed by the reference accounting standards, the criterion for 
determination applied by the Group may not be in line with the criterion adopted by others and is therefore not comparable. 
 

Revenues as at 30 September 2012 showed an increase in the Stringing equipment segment of 10.6% and a 

decrease in the Trencher segment of 14.8% compared to the same period of the previous year. 

In the Stringing equipment segment, market demand in the period related mostly to Europe and the US, although 

high levels were recorded in BRIC countries. 

In the Trencher segment, results for the first nine months confirmed expectations, particularly as regards the 

American market, where efforts to develop direct sales to final users rather than using local distributors continued, 

while the Middle East market recorded tangible results of projects launched at the end of the previous year.  

 
Company directors monitor the operating income of business units separately in order to make decisions on 

resource allocation and assess performance. Segment performance is assessed on the basis of operating income.  

Group financial management (including financial income and charges) and income tax is managed at Group level 

and are not allocated to the individual operating segments. 

The following table shows the consolidated statement of financial position by business segment as at 30 September 

2012 and as at 31 December 2011: 
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  As at 30 September As at 30 September As at 30 September As at 30 September 2012201220122012    As at 31 December 2011As at 31 December 2011As at 31 December 2011As at 31 December 2011    

(Euro in thousands) 

Stringing Stringing Stringing Stringing 
equipmentequipmentequipmentequipment    

TrencherTrencherTrencherTrencher    
Not Not Not Not 

allocatedallocatedallocatedallocated    
ConsolidatedConsolidatedConsolidatedConsolidated    

Stringing Stringing Stringing Stringing 
equipmentequipmentequipmentequipment    

TrencherTrencherTrencherTrencher    
Not Not Not Not 

allocatedallocatedallocatedallocated    
ConsolidatedConsolidatedConsolidatedConsolidated    

Intangible assets 3,489 4,263 - 7,752 3,431 4,532 - 7,963 

Property, plant and 
equipment 

13,173 27,944 - 41,117 12,847 26,034 - 38,881 

Financial assets 2,251 620 - 2,871 1,102 1,261 - 2,363 

Other non-current 
assets 

- 1,532 2,590 4,122 - 1,551 3,220 4,771 

Total nonTotal nonTotal nonTotal non----current current current current 
assetsassetsassetsassets    

18,91318,91318,91318,913    34,35934,35934,35934,359    2,5902,5902,5902,590    55,86255,86255,86255,862    17,38017,38017,38017,380    33,37833,37833,37833,378    3,2203,2203,2203,220    53,97853,97853,97853,978    

Inventories 11,928 31,588 
 

43,516 11,937 30,144 - 42,081 

Trade receivables 16,090 25,081 - 41,171 14,367 29,535 - 43,902 

Other current assets 1,050 7,156 1,630 9,836 - 1,708 3,001 4,709 

Cash and cash 
equivalents 

- - 7,370 7,370 - - 13,817 13,817 

Total current asseTotal current asseTotal current asseTotal current assetstststs    29,06829,06829,06829,068    63,82563,82563,82563,825    9,0009,0009,0009,000    101,893101,893101,893101,893    26,30426,30426,30426,304    61,38761,38761,38761,387    16,81816,81816,81816,818    104,509104,509104,509104,509    

Total assetsTotal assetsTotal assetsTotal assets    47,98147,98147,98147,981    98,18498,18498,18498,184    11,59011,59011,59011,590    157,755157,755157,755157,755    43,68443,68443,68443,684    94,76594,76594,76594,765    20,03820,03820,03820,038    158,487158,487158,487158,487    

Equity attributable to Equity attributable to Equity attributable to Equity attributable to 
Parent Company Parent Company Parent Company Parent Company 
ShareholdersShareholdersShareholdersShareholders    

----    ----    40,56540,56540,56540,565    40,56540,56540,56540,565    ----    ----    38,88738,88738,88738,887    38,88738,88738,88738,887    

NonNonNonNon----controlling controlling controlling controlling 
interestsinterestsinterestsinterests    

----    ----    ----    ----    ----    ----    ----    ----    

NonNonNonNon----current liabilitiescurrent liabilitiescurrent liabilitiescurrent liabilities    ----    1,0241,0241,0241,024    40,66740,66740,66740,667    41,69141,69141,69141,691    ----    1,2301,2301,2301,230    53,02753,02753,02753,027    54,25754,25754,25754,257    

Current financial 
liabilities 

- 
 

37,877 37,877 - - 25,390 25,390 

Trade payables 19,829 10,303 - 30,132 15,226 11,303 - 26,529 

Other current liabilities 602 2,512 4,376 7,490 3,875 3,942 5,607 13,424 

Total current liabilitiesTotal current liabilitiesTotal current liabilitiesTotal current liabilities    20,43120,43120,43120,431    12,81512,81512,81512,815    42,25342,25342,25342,253    75,49975,49975,49975,499    19,10119,10119,10119,101    15,24515,24515,24515,245    30,99730,99730,99730,997    65,34365,34365,34365,343    

Total liabilitiesTotal liabilitiesTotal liabilitiesTotal liabilities    20,43120,43120,43120,431    13,83913,83913,83913,839    82,92082,92082,92082,920    117,190117,190117,190117,190    19,10119,10119,10119,101    16,47516,47516,47516,475    84,02484,02484,02484,024    119,600119,600119,600119,600    

Total shareholders’ Total shareholders’ Total shareholders’ Total shareholders’ 
equity and liabilitiesequity and liabilitiesequity and liabilitiesequity and liabilities    

20,43120,43120,43120,431    13,83913,83913,83913,839    123,485123,485123,485123,485    157,755157,755157,755157,755    19,10119,10119,10119,101    16,47516,47516,47516,475    122,911122,911122,911122,911    158,487158,487158,487158,487    
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Related party transactions 

 

The following table gives details of economic and equity transactions with related parties. The companies listed 
below have been identified as related parties as they are linked directly or indirectly to the current shareholders: 

 

 

  
As at 30 September 2012As at 30 September 2012As at 30 September 2012As at 30 September 2012    30 September 201230 September 201230 September 201230 September 2012    

(Euro in thousands) 

RevenuesRevenuesRevenuesRevenues    
Cost of Cost of Cost of Cost of 

raw raw raw raw 
materialsmaterialsmaterialsmaterials    

Cost of Cost of Cost of Cost of 
servicesservicesservicesservices    

Other operating Other operating Other operating Other operating 
(costs)/revenues, (costs)/revenues, (costs)/revenues, (costs)/revenues, 

netnetnetnet    

Financial Financial Financial Financial 
income income income income 

and and and and 
expensesexpensesexpensesexpenses    

Trade Trade Trade Trade 
receivablesreceivablesreceivablesreceivables    

CurrCurrCurrCurrent ent ent ent 
financial financial financial financial 

receivablesreceivablesreceivablesreceivables    

Other Other Other Other 
current current current current 
assetsassetsassetsassets    

NonNonNonNon----
current current current current 

financial financial financial financial 
liabilitiesliabilitiesliabilitiesliabilities    

Current Current Current Current 
financial financial financial financial 
liabilitiesliabilitiesliabilitiesliabilities    

Trade Trade Trade Trade 
payablespayablespayablespayables    

Associated companies:Associated companies:Associated companies:Associated companies:    
           

East Trencher S.r.l. 12 - (42) - 4 14 203 - - - - 

Locavert S.A. 269 - - - - 29 - - - - - 

Sibtechmash - - - - - 15 - - - - - 

SubtotalSubtotalSubtotalSubtotal    281281281281    ----    (42)(42)(42)(42)    ----    4444    58585858    203203203203    ----    ----    ----    ----    

Joint ventures:Joint ventures:Joint ventures:Joint ventures:    
           

Condux Tesmec Inc. 4,639 (83) - - 3 2,739 48 - - - 79 

Tesmec Peninsula (4,400) - 69 - - 
 

4,938 - - - - 

SubtotalSubtotalSubtotalSubtotal    239239239239    (83)(83)(83)(83)    69696969    ----    3333    2,7392,7392,7392,739    4,9864,9864,9864,986    ----    ----    ----    79797979    

RelaRelaRelaRelated parties:ted parties:ted parties:ted parties:    
                                            

Ambrosio S.r.l. - - - (10) - - - - - - 4 

Avv. Caterina Caccia 
Dominioni 

- - (16) - - - - - - - - 

CBF S.r.l. - - - (195) - - - - - - - 

Ceresio Tours S.r.l. - - (12) - - - - - - - 1 

Dream Immobiliare S.r.l. - - - (155) (919) 
 

1,069 
 

18,273 875 
 

Eurofidi S.p.A. - - - - - - 2 - - - - 

FI.IND. S.p.A. - - 
 

- - 42 - - - - 
 

Lame Nautica S.r.l. 1 - - - - 1 - - - - - 

M.T.S. Officine 
meccaniche S.p.A. 

1,280 (6) (4) 
 

- 1,820 - - - - - 

Reggiani Macchine S.p.A. 
 

- 84 
 

29 285 - - - - 5 

SuSuSuSubtotalbtotalbtotalbtotal    1,2811,2811,2811,281    (6)(6)(6)(6)    52525252    (360)(360)(360)(360)    (890)(890)(890)(890)    2,1482,1482,1482,148    1,0711,0711,0711,071    ----    18,27318,27318,27318,273    875875875875    10101010    

TotalTotalTotalTotal    1,8011,8011,8011,801    (89)(89)(89)(89)    79797979    (360)(360)(360)(360)    (883)(883)(883)(883)    4,9454,9454,9454,945    6,2606,2606,2606,260    ----    18,27318,27318,27318,273    875875875875    89898989    
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As at 30 September 2011As at 30 September 2011As at 30 September 2011As at 30 September 2011    30 September 201130 September 201130 September 201130 September 2011    

(Euro in thousands) 

RevenuesRevenuesRevenuesRevenues    
Cost of Cost of Cost of Cost of 

raw raw raw raw 
materialsmaterialsmaterialsmaterials    

Cost of Cost of Cost of Cost of 
servicesservicesservicesservices    

Other Other Other Other operating operating operating operating 
(costs)/revenues, (costs)/revenues, (costs)/revenues, (costs)/revenues, 

netnetnetnet    

Financial Financial Financial Financial 
income income income income 

and and and and 
expensesexpensesexpensesexpenses    

Trade Trade Trade Trade 
receivablesreceivablesreceivablesreceivables    

Current Current Current Current 
financial financial financial financial 

receivablesreceivablesreceivablesreceivables    

Other Other Other Other 
current current current current 
assetsassetsassetsassets    

NonNonNonNon----
current current current current 

financial financial financial financial 
liabilitiesliabilitiesliabilitiesliabilities    

Current Current Current Current 
financial financial financial financial 
liabilitiesliabilitiesliabilitiesliabilities    

Trade Trade Trade Trade 
payablespayablespayablespayables    

Associated companies:Associated companies:Associated companies:Associated companies:    
           

East Trencher S.r.l. - - (117) - 2 - 252 - - - - 

Locavert S.A. 179 - - - - 72 - - - - - 

Sibtechmash - - - - - 15 - - - - - 

SubtotalSubtotalSubtotalSubtotal    179179179179    ----    (117)(117)(117)(117)    ----    2222    87878787    252252252252    ----    ----    ----    ----    

Joint ventures:Joint ventures:Joint ventures:Joint ventures:    
           

Condux Tesmec Inc. 1,455 - - - 40 594 1,392 - - - - 

Tesmec Peninsula 3,637 - 72 - - 3,863 - - - - - 

SubtotalSubtotalSubtotalSubtotal    5,0925,0925,0925,092    ----    72727272    ----    40404040    4,4574,4574,4574,457    1,3921,3921,3921,392    ----    ----    ----    ----    

Related parties:Related parties:Related parties:Related parties:    
                                            

Ambrosio S.r.l. - - - (14) - - - - - - 17 

Avv. Caterina Caccia 
Dominioni 

- - (21) - - - - - - - - 

Dott. Geom. Matteo 
Caccia Dominioni 

- - - - - - - - - - 24 

CBF S.r.l. - - - (283) - - - - - - - 

Ceresio Tours S.r.l. - - (12) - - - - - - - 1 

Dream Immobiliare S.r.l. - - (24) (103) (800) 1 1,069 101 19,148 738 (2) 

Eurofidi S.p.A. - - - - - - 2 - - - - 

FI.IND. S.p.A. - - 
 

- - 16 - - - - (4) 

Jaeggli S.p.A. - - - - - 4 - - - - - 

Jaeggli Meccanotessile 
S.r.l. 

- - (2) - - - - - - - 5 

Lame Nautica S.r.l. 1 - - - - - - - - - - 

M.T.S. Officine 
meccaniche S.p.A. 

1,431 (16) (102) (2) - 1,292 - - - - - 

Reggiani Macchine S.p.A. 3 - 90 181 - 82 - - - - - 

SubSubSubSubtotaltotaltotaltotal    1,4351,4351,4351,435    (16)(16)(16)(16)    (71)(71)(71)(71)    (221)(221)(221)(221)    (800)(800)(800)(800)    1,3951,3951,3951,395    1,0711,0711,0711,071    101101101101    19,14819,14819,14819,148    738738738738    41414141    

TotalTotalTotalTotal    6,7066,7066,7066,706    (16)(16)(16)(16)    (116)(116)(116)(116)    (221)(221)(221)(221)    (758)(758)(758)(758)    5,9395,9395,9395,939    2,7152,7152,7152,715    101101101101    19,14819,14819,14819,148    738738738738    41414141    
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Subsequent events and business outlookSubsequent events and business outlookSubsequent events and business outlookSubsequent events and business outlook    

 

With regard to the authorisation to purchase treasury shares approved by the Shareholders' meeting of 10 January 

2012 (already disclosed under article 144 bis of the Consob regulation no. 11971/99), we hereby inform you that: 

in the period between 1 October 2012 and the date of approval of this Report, 150,000 shares (0.14% of Share 

Capital) were purchased at an average price of Euro 0.396 for a total amount net of commission of Euro 59,443.  
Between the launch of the buy-back plan and the date of approval of this report, a total of 1,100,000 shares (1% of 

the Share Capital) were purchased at an average price of Euro 0.36 (net of commission) for a total equivalent value 

of Euro 395,587. 

 

Today, the board of directors of Tesmec S.p.A. has been convened to approve the appropriate changes to the 

articles of association to comply with Law 120/2011 (Golfo-Mosca), which envisages that at least one third of the 

members of the boards of directors and boards of statutory auditors of companies listed on regulated markets must 

belong to “the less represented gender”, and that for first-time application, said portion must be at least one fifth.  

 

The situation of outstanding orders and the increase in the number of ongoing negotiations in both the Stringing 

equipment segment, where in addition to traditional projects in line-laying, important orders are being received in 

the area of railway line maintenance, and in the Trencher segment, where the positive trend of the US market has 
been boosted by a recovery in orders in the Middle East market, leading to prospects of an increase in sales volumes 

over the next few months, with respect to the past nine months, which will result in higher structural profit margins 

for the Group. 
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Attestation pursuant to Article 154Attestation pursuant to Article 154Attestation pursuant to Article 154Attestation pursuant to Article 154----bis of Italian Legislative Decree 58/98bis of Italian Legislative Decree 58/98bis of Italian Legislative Decree 58/98bis of Italian Legislative Decree 58/98    

 

 

1. The undersigned Ambrogio Caccia Dominioni and Andrea Bramani, as the Chief Executive Officer and the 

Manager responsible for preparing the Company's financial statements of Tesmec S.p.A., respectively, attest, 

considering also what is provided under Article 154-bis, sub-sections 3 and 4, of Italian Legislative Decree no. 
58 of 24 February 1998: 

 

� the adequacy in relation to the characteristics of the business and 

� actual application 

 

of the administrative and accounting procedures for preparing the Condensed Consolidated Financial 

Statements as at 30 September 2012. 

 

2. We also attest that:  

 

2.1 the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 September 2012: 

 

� have been prepared in accordance with international accounting standards endorsed by the European 

Union, as provided by the EC Regulation No. 1606/2002 issued by the European Parliament and by the 

European Council on 19 July 2002; 

� correspond to the amounts shown in the Company’s accounts, books and records; 

� provide a fair and correct representation of the financial conditions, results of operations and cash-flow of 

the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries. 

 

2.2  the interim report on operations refers to the important events that took place during the first nine months of 

the financial period and their impact on the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, together with a 

description of the main risks and uncertainties for the three remaining months of the financial period. The 

interim report on operations also includes a reliable analysis of information on significant transactions with 

related parties.  

 

 

Grassobbio, 9 November 2012 

 

 

  
Ambrogio Caccia Dominioni                  Andrea Bramani 

 

Chief Executive Officer        Manager responsible for 

preparing the Company’s 

financial statements 
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